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 DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION  

 

 PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 2nd Floor West Wing, University Drive, Garona Building, 

     MMABATHO 

 

POSTAL ADDRESS:  Private Bag 2079 

MMABATHO 

2735 

 

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:   018 388 5176 

EMAIL ADDRESS:    kmahlobo@nwpg.gov.za 

WEBSITE ADDRESS   :  www.nwpg.gov.za/humansettlements 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

http://www.nwpg.gov.za/humansettlements
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1. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS 

 

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa 

AC Audit Committee 

AO  Accounting Officer 

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

MEC Member of Executive Council 

HOD Head of Department 

IAF Internal Audit Function 

PFMA Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 

TR    Treasury Regulations 

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises 

SCM Supply Chain Management 

EU European Union 

SITA State Information Technology Agency 

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan 
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2. FOREWORD BY THE MEC  

 

In the 2023/24 financial year annual report, I contended that the Department takes pride in providing 

much-needed services to our communities as mandated by the Constitution. We have, therefore, 

continued on an upward trajectory to improve the lives of our people as envisioned by the Freedom 

Charter.

I am deeply honoured to present the Department of Human Settlements' Annual Report for the 2024/2025 

financial year. This report reflects the department's collective efforts and unwavering commitment to 

accelerating the delivery of sustainable and integrated human settlements while promoting dignity and 

social cohesion through access to adequate housing.

One of the key highlights for the 2023/2024 financial year is the fact that the Department has fully utilised 

its allocation of the Human Settlements Development Grant (HSDG). We have successfully built 3429 

units and 9841 serviced sites.  For the upgrading of the Informal settlement programme, over 4000 

serviced sites were delivered at the end of the financial year.

This is a testament that we have made significant strides in transforming the human settlements 

landscape, despite the socio-economic challenges that continue to impact our communities. Amongst the 

key challenges that confront the sector are the effects of a lack of economic growth, which impacts budget 

allocation, and unplanned budget cuts that impact programmes and the timely delivery of housing.

We are working with municipalities and provincial departments on issues of land availability, which has a 

continued effect on our programme, including the Military Veterans Programmes.

The progress documented in this report demonstrates our dedication to building inclusive communities, 

eradicating informal settlements, and enhancing spatial planning in line with our national development 

priorities and the goals of the District Development Model (DDM).
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To ensure that we address the housing backlog and sporadic rise of informal settlements, I will host the 

Department’s Housing Summit in the next financial year. The upcoming 2026 elections will be the 

hallmark of our democratic project, and a great reminder of the trust placed in us by our people. Thus, 

we should be in a position to demonstrate through strategic partnerships with municipalities, private 

sector stakeholders, and communities our commitment to a solid foundation to improve the quality of life 

for our people.

This report serves not only as a record of our achievements but also as an honest reflection of the areas 

where we must improve. We remain steadfast in our mission to ensure that every citizen lives in a home 

that is safe, decent, and supported by the necessary infrastructure.

A word of gratitude goes much to the Head of Department, departmental staff, and partners for their 

relentless dedication. Your commitment enables us to deliver on our constitutional mandate and build a 

future where everyone, regardless of their background, has a place to call home.

To the National Department of Human Settlements, National Council of Provinces, Portfolio Committees 

and citizens — thank you for your continued engagement and support.

We will continue with our quest to fulfil the mandate of delivering a better life for all with decent and 

sustainable housing as an apex priority. 

 

 

 

 

MEC: G.O. MOLAPISI 

MEC of the Department of Corporate Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional 

Affairs 

Date: 26 08 2025 
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3. DEPUTY MINISTER STATEMENT (N/A) 

4. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER  

 

 Departmental receipts 

 

 

Departmental receipts 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Estimate Actual 

Amount 
Collected 

(Over)/Under 
Collection 

 

Estimate 

 

Actual 

Amount 
Collected 

(Over)/Under 
Collection 

 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Tax Receipts       

Casino taxes       

Horse racing taxes       

Liquor licences       

Motor vehicle licences       

Sale of goods and services other than 
capital assets 

104 121 (17) 100 158 (58) 

Transfers received       

Fines, penalties and forfeits       

Interest, dividends and rent on land       

Sale of capital assets 0   77 (77) 0 43 (43) 

Financial transactions in assets and 
liabilities 

0          147 (147) 0 1 083 (1 083) 

Total 104          345 (241) 100 1 284 (1 184) 

o The Department is not in the business of generating revenue in its nature. Main source of revenue is 

commission earned from third party deductions and sale of tender documents. No tariff is levied by the 

Department for housing development provided to the communities. 

 

o The Department has over collected on its revenue target as substantial amount was collected from sale of 

tender documents for the development of the database of service providers for housing development projects, 

recovery of monies from overpaid invoices and staff debts. Where the department has collected more revenue 

than planned, provide reasons for the better than anticipated performance. The department can also use this 

section to report on new measures instituted during the course of the year to raise additional revenue or to 

ensure more efficient/effective collection.  Where there were sales of capital assets, reasons for such a sale 

must be provided. 
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Programme Expenditure  

 

Programme Name 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual  

Expenditure 

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure  

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual  

Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure  

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Administration 183 303 182 663   640 166 660 166 295 365 

Housing Needs, 
Planning and 
Research 

30 312 29 271 1 041 30 358 29 848           510 

Housing 
Development 

1 830 695 1 827 909 2 786 1 597 783 1 508 824          88 959 

Total 2 044 310 2 039 843 4 467 1 794 801 1 704 967           89 834 

 

o The Department has spent R 2 039 843 000 of its total allocation of R2 044 310 000 in the 2024/25 

financial year. This translates to a percentage spending of 100 percent. Underspending is recorded 

for three expenditure economic classes for the following reasons. Slow recruitment processes also 

contributed to under-expenditure on compensation of employees, payments for capital assets and 

Interest. 

 

o Virements/roll overs  

The Department was approved a virement as follows:- 

Programme 2: Housing Needs, Planning and Research was reduced by (R1 000 000) to  

Programme 1: Administration 

  
o State what virements were done and the request for rollovers 

It came to light when the department was conducting a final assessment of the 2024/25 budget 

performance and prior to the finalisation of period 12 closure and has identified a possible budget 

overrun in COE under Programme 1: Administration; while Programme 2, Housing Planning and 

Research was affected by the journals passed due to correction of Misallocations and Programme 3: 

Housing Development will result in excess of the allocated COE budgets and over expenditure under 

G&S while staying within the overall budgets. 

 

o Reason for the virement  

 

 To avoid unauthorized expenditure on the Vote. 

 

 A description of the reasons for unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and the amounts 

involved as well as steps taken to address and prevent a recurrence. 

o Unauthorised expenditure  

 The Department did not incur any unauthorised expenditure during 2024/25 Financial Year.  
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o Irregular Expenditure  

The Department incurred a cumulative irregular expenditure amount to R 6 916 022 024.85 as at 31 

March  2025. This is as a result of prior year contracts which were declared irregular by AG (SA) as 

a result of the sourcing strategy and the database which is not in line with section 217 of the 

constitution. The Department has a draft souring strategy was submitted to Provincial Internal Audit 

and Auditor General (SA) for review.  

o Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

The Loss Control committee is currently in a process of conducting a determination test in order to 

confirm if the expenditure amounting to R 1 256 153.58 meets the definition of Fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure. 

 Strategic focus over the short to medium term period 

The department planned to improve on its audit outcome over the short and medium term period by 

having the structure that is fir for purpose as well as having effective financial systems that will result 

in reducing unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The department also seek to 

achieve outcome 8 in the National Development Plan by issuing and eradicating backlog on title 

deeds as well as implementing lead catalytic projects that demonstrate spatial targeting social and 

economic integration. 

 

  Public Private Partnerships 

 None 

  Discontinued key activities / activities to be discontinued 

 None 

o Reasons for discontinuance  

 N/A 

o Effect on the operations of, and service delivery by the department  

 N/A 

o Financial implications of each discontinued activity. 

 N/A 

  New or proposed key activities 

 None 

o Reasons for new activities  

 N/A 

o Effect on the operations of the department  

 N/A 

o Financial implications of each new activity  

 N/A 
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 Supply chain management  

o List all unsolicited bid proposals concluded for the year under review 

 None 

o Indicate whether SCM processes and systems are in place to prevent irregular expenditure 

o There are processes in place to avoid irregular expenditure such as functionality of bid committees 

and strict adherence of internal SCM policy and Treasury Regulations. SCM processes is being 

assessed by PIA for all bids above R10M before awards are made. 

o Challenges experienced in SCM and how they were resolved  

o It has been identified that the selection criteria for the pre -qualified database was not in line with 

section 217 and this is what primarily caused and increased the irregular expenditure. The mitigation 

to this challenge is for the Department to go out on a competitive bidding process for all its 

infrastructure projects. 

 Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties 

None 

 Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury  

 None 

 Events after the reporting date 

 None 

 Other  

 None 

 Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation  

 Conclusion 

 Approval and sign off 

 

 

 

Ms. M.K. Mahlobo 

Accounting Officer  

Department of Human Settlements 

Date: 26 08 2025 
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6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE 

ANNUAL REPORT  

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.  

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued 

by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part F) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash 

standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury. 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for 

the judgements made in this information.   

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control 

that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements. 

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 

resources information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 

2025. 

 

 

Yours faithfully,  

 

 

 

Accounting Officer 

Ms. M.K. Mahlobo 

Date: 26 08 2025 
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

7.1. Vision  

 A community in an integrated and sustainable human settlement. 

7.2. Mission 

 To provide adequate and sustainable human settlements that enable improved quality of life. 

7.3. Values 

         Our organisational culture is depicted by the following attributes: 

 Commitment 

 Integrity 

 Quality 

 Courtesy 

 Resourceful 

 Diligence 

 Efficient 

 Batho Pele Principles 

 

8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 

 

Department of Human Settlements derives its mandate from Chapter 2 of the Bill of Rights in the 

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa which states that everyone has the right to access adequate 

housing. 

 Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996; 

 The Housing Act 107 of 1997; 

 The Housing Consumers Protection Measure Act 19 of 1998; 

 The Rental Housing Act 50, 1999; 

 Division of Revenue Act, 7 of 2003; Public Service Collective Bargaining Chamber (PSCBC) 

Resolutions. 

 Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993; 

 The Public Service Regulations 2001; 

 The Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000; 

 National Minimum Information Security Standard Policy of 1996; 

 Public Service Act 103 of 1994 

 Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999; as amended 

 Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995; 

 Development Facilitation Act 67 of 1995; 
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 Breaking New Ground; 

 Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998; 

 Construction Industry Development Board Act 2000 
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9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

 

 

10. ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MEC 

 

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 

Relationship 

Nature of Operations 

North West 

Housing 

Corporation 

North West Housing 

Corporation Act 24 of 1982 as 

amended 

Schedule 3C Public 

Entity of the 

Department 

The Corporation operate 

under the leadership of the 

North West Housing 

Corporation Board. 

 

 

 

 

  

MEC:Mr. G.O. Molapisi

HOD:

Mrs. M.K. Mahlobo

CFO

Ms. S. Mokhadi

CD: Programme 2

Mr. T. Phetlhu

CD: Programme 3

Mr. V. Bidi

CD: Corporate Services 
Ms. D. Lolokwane

V

Dir: HRM: 

Ms. R. Modisakeng

Dir: Legal Services: 

Mr. T.Lerefolo
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION  
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1. AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES  

 

 Refer to page 98 - 108 of the Report of the Auditor-General, published as Part F: Financial 

 Information. 

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE  

2.1 Service Delivery Environment 

The right to adequate housing is clearly recognised in international human rights law, including in the 

International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, which provides for ‘the right of everyone 

to an adequate standard of living for himself and his family, including adequate food, clothing and housing, 

and to the continuous improvement of living conditions’ (United Nations Publication, 2012). The South 

African Constitution states that everyone has the right to have access to adequate housing and the state 

must take reasonable legislative and other measures, within its available resources, to achieve the 

progressive realization of this right. 

The North West Provincial Government is also faced with a mammoth task of ensuring that its communities 

who need quality houses get those houses. Two major contributing factors to the slow delivery of houses 

during the 2024/25 financial year were contractors who abandoned sites due to non-payment of the claims 

due to budget cuts, as well as those who were performing at snail pace. The department has scaled down 

and terminated contracts of poor performing contractors and those who were not on site respectively. 

 Blocked Projects 

Out of the twenty (20) developers who were appointed in 2023/24 to unblock 5401 units across all the four 

districts, little progress has been registered to unblock those units. This is because most of the contractors 

abandoned sites as a result of their claims not being paid due to budget cuts. The department will continue 

to work hard to unblock these blocked projects.  

 Title Deeds Restoration Programme 

The Department appointed a panel of 25 conveyancers in the previous financial year. Since the 

appointment of the conveyancers, the department has registered over-achievement with the New and Post 

2014 title deeds for the first time after a long period. The department has not done well on the Pre-94 and 

Post-94 title deeds. The non-achievement is due to factors outside of the department’s control, e.g. 

Non/Poor functional MPTs, delays in name changes of certain areas etc. 
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2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan` 

 

 Main services and standards 

Main 

services 

Beneficiaries Current/actual 

standard of service 

Desired 

standard of 

service 

Actual achievement 

Title Deed 

Restoration 

Programme 

North-West 

citizens and legal 

permanent 

residents that are 

approved 

beneficiaries in all 

programmes 

excluding rural 

projects and CRU 

and rental units. 

Title deeds to 

eradicate post 1994 

backlog 

6632 post 1994 

title deeds to be 

registered 

 

 3044 post 1994 title 

deeds transferred to 

homeowners 

Title deeds 

registered for new 

homeowners 

  941 title deeds to 

be registered 

 

 992 title deeds 

registered to new 

homeowners. 

Post 2014 Title 

Deeds to be 

registered 

2136 title deeds to 

be registered 

 2166 Post 2014 title 

deeds registered 

Pre 94 Title Deeds 

registered 

1098 Title deeds to 

be registered 

  107 Pre 94 title 

deeds registered 

Housing 

Units 

Approved 

beneficiaries 

Breaking New 

Grounds to be 

delivered 

3376 Breaking 

New Grounds to 

be delivered 

 3325 Breaking New 

Grounds delivered 

Financial 

Linked 

Individual 

Subsidy 

Programme 

Approved 

beneficiaries 

FLIPS applications 

approved and paid 

to beneficiaries 

70 FLISP 

applications to be 

approved 

 35 applications were 

approved for 

beneficiaries. 

 

 Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation access, etc.) 

Current Arrangements Desired Arrangements Actual Achievements 

Consultation  Informed citizenry  7704 consumer education 

conducted across the province. 

Access  Effective and efficient front / help desk at 

NWDC Ground Floor Office 1 and 2 from 

08h00 – 16h30 (Housing Subsidy Claims) 

and availability of personnel at Head 

Office during department operational 

hours for all title deed 

 Availability of department operations 

at district level enquiries and processing 

 

 Department still centralized at 

Head Office Only (Mafikeng), 

although Housing officials are 

assigned per district and rely on 

weekly/daily travelling to their 

respective service sites. 

 The department is currently 

looking at the options of 

establishing regional offices. 
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Courtesy  Use of batho pele community 

feedback questionnaire; 

 Develop title deed and housing delivery 

satisfaction survey to circulate to 

community members / beneficiaries at 

departmental project sites; 

 Display of Batho Pele Principles at 

departmental sites; 

 Provision of nametags for 

outstanding officials. 

 All calls and title deed queries 

directed to relevant section. 

Redress  Development of complaints and 

compliments framework; 

 Suggestion box and complaints 

register at departmental sites; 

 Provision of feedback and resolution 

mechanism from provincial toll free 

administered by the Municipal admin unit; 

 Liaison with ward councillors, war room 

and service delivery outreach. 

 Departmental Complaints and 

Compliments framework were 

circulated. 

Information  Housing Consumer Education Awareness 

campaigns to include title deed restoration 

programme; 

 Provision of signage at NWDC and 

service charter at departmental sites. 

 7704 beneficiaries provided with 

consumer education across the 

province 

Openness 

and 

Transparency 

 Availability of the following to the public: 

APP, Strategic Plan, Annual Report, 

Service Charter and Contact list 

Approved 2024/25 Annual 

Performance Plan available and 

shared with officials through the 

departmental intranet. 

 Approved Strategic Plan in Place. 

Service Standards  Title deeds transferred to new and 

existing homeowners who are 

subsidised by the department. 

 Title deeds transferred to 

correct homeowners 

Value for money  Title deed restoration programme 

utilized within allocated budget 

 6315 title deeds transferred to 

correct homeowners 
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 Service delivery information tool 

Current 

Arrangements 

Desired Arrangements Actual Achievement 

Community 

Information contact 

sessions 

To educate service recipients, community 

members and housing consumers on access, 

entitlement and regulations on 

housing opportunities. 

Consumer education provided across 

the province. 

 

 Complaints mechanism 

Current 

Arrangements 

Desired Arrangements Actual Achievement 

Department Front Desk Effective and efficient front-desk (personnel) 

which deals with all housing related complaints 

2 offices allocated for all housing 

enquiries, applications and status. 

Offices are based at no 24 and 26 

Ground Floor, NWDC Building. 

 

2.3 Organisational environment  

The department has high vacancy rate. This is due to non-availability of funds to fill critical vacant 

positions. The department has engaged the Provincial Treasury requesting additional funds to fill 

critical vacant positions. The department is currently reviewing the organizational structure so that it 

can be for purpose. 

2.4  Key policy developments and legislative changes 

 There were no major changes to relevant policies or legislation. 
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3. ACHIEVEMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL IMPACTS AND OUTCOMES  

Impact Statement: Improved living conditions through the provision of integrated sustainable human 

settlements in the North West Province. The above-mentioned impact statement will be realized through 

the achievement of one of the following three (3) departmental outcomes: 

Outcomes: 

Programme 1 Outcome: Improved good governance and accountability. 

The department has planned to contribute towards the achievement of the outcome improved good 

governance and accountability. The following four (4) output indicators are set to measure the extent to 

which the department is achieving its output. The achieved outputs will contribute towards the 

achievement of the above-mentioned Programme 1 five-year outcome target through the following 

indicators:- 

 Percentage of post audit findings resolved 

 Compliance levels with HRM legislative prescripts 

 Percentage of invoices paid within 30 days 

 Number of performance reports received from North West Housing Corporation for oversight 

monitoring 

 

 The department achieved two (2) indicators out of the four (4) targeted indicators. This translates to 

50% achievement. 

Programme 2 Outcome: Creation of a conducive environment for the implementation of 

human settlements programmes. 

 

 Programme 2 did well on three (3) out of four (4) output indicators that were planned to be achieved. 

Notable achievement has been realized in the following output indicators namely: - 

 Number of potential beneficiaries provided with consumer education 

 Percentage of investment of the total human settlements allocation in PDAs 

 Number of Human Settlements Development Grant Business Plan produced. 
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 Programme 3 Outcome:  Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of household life 

Programme 3: Out of the nine (9) output indicators only three (3) were achieved whilst six (6) indicators 

were not achieved. Contributing factors to non-achievement of these targets was as a result of the 

following factors:- 

 Under- achievement as a result of most contractors who abandoned sites due to non- 

payment of claims as a result of budget shortfall. 

 Poor performance by contractors 

 Under-achievement as a result of some of the beneficiaries who were not approved in the 

F L I S P  programme 

 Non/Poor functional Municipal Planning Tribunal. 

 

4. INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION  

4.1. Programme 1: Administration 

Purpose: To provide corporate support to the entire Department as well as strategic 

administration and political direction through the offices of the Head of Department and the 

Executive Authority respectively. This programme consists of the following sub-programmes: - 

4.1.1 Office of the HOD 

4.1.2 Financial Management 

4.1.3 Corporate services 

Purpose of the sub-programmes: 

 Office of the HOD::To provide strategic leadership in ensuring provision of integrated and 

sustainable human settlements in the North West Province 

 Financial Management: To manage the department’s finances 

 Corporate services: To oversee the provision of corporate support services 

 

Institutional outcomes that each programme contributes. 

Sub-programme Outcome that each programme contributes to. 

Office of the HOD  Improved good governance and accountability 

 Creation of a conducive environment for the implementation of human 

settlements programmes. 

 Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of household life 

Financial Management  Improved good governance and accountability 

Corporate Services  Improved good governance and accountability 
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Table 2.4.4.1: Originally Tabled APP 

 NB: The deviation from the planned target to the actual achievement 2024/2025 is 

 against the Q1 targets. 

 

  

Programme 1: Administration  

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa 

nce 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa

nce 2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve 

ment 

   2024/ 

2025 until 

date of re 

tabling 

Deviation from 

planned target 

to Actual 

Achievement 

2024/2025 

Reasons for 

deviations 

Reasons for 

revisions to the 

Outputs / 

Output 

indicators / 

Annual Targets 

Improved 

good 

governance 

and 

accountability 

Reduced 

audit 

findings in 

the PAAP 

register 

Percentag

e of post 

audit 

findings 

resolved 

98% 32%      100%    0 100% The target was not 

planned for at the 

time of reporting 

prior to the re-

tabling of the APP. 

No revisions were 

made on the 

outputs/ output 

indicators/ targets 

for programme 1 

 HRM 

legislative 

complianc

e checklist 

Complianc

e levels 

with HRM 

legislative 

prescripts. 

Level 

3 

Level 3 Level 4      0 Level 4 The target was not 

planned for at the 

time of reporting prior 

to the re-tabling of the 

APP. 

 

 100% of 

compliant 

invoices paid 

within 30 

days 

Percentage of 

invoices paid 

within 30 days 

100% 100%   100% 42.93% 57.07% Due to previous 

year’s budget cuts, 

the department 

incurred accruals 

and payables, 

During the 1st 

quarter the 

department 

received additional 

claims, which could 

not be processed 

due to financial 

constraints 

 

  

Performanc

e reports 

Number of 

performance 

reports 

received from 

the North 

West Housing 

Corporation 

for oversight 

monitoring 

 N/A 2      4 1          3 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter prior 

the re-tabling of the 

APP. The target for 

Q1 was 1. 

 

  performance        



24 
 

Outcomes, Outputs, Output Indicators, Targets and Actual Achievements 

The department has planned to contribute to the achievement of the outcome Improved good governance 

and accountability through the following four (4) output indicators. The output achieved will contribute 

towards the achievement of the above-mentioned outcome through the following indicators: - 

• Percentage reduction of post audit findings 

• Compliance levels with HRM legislative prescripts 

• Percentage of compliant invoices paid within 30 days. 

• Number of performance reports received from the North West Housing Corporation for 

oversight monitoring 

 

The Department has performed fairly on two output indicators. This is an average performance towards 

the realization of the outcome. Although the department has not fully achieved the target of the two 

(2) indicators, positive progress has been registered on the “Percentage of reduction of post audit findings” 

and “Percentage of compliant invoices paid within 30 days” indicators. 
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Table 2.4.4.2: Re Tabled APP 

 

Programme 1: Administration 

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa 

nce 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa

nce 2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve 

ment 

   2024/ 

2025 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

Actual 

Achievemen

t 2024/2025 

Reasons or deviation 

Improved 

good 

governan

ce and 

accounta

bility 

Reduced audit 

findings in the 

PAAP 

register 

Percentage of 

post audit 

findings 

resolved 

98% 95% 100%         81% 19% Limitation on the 

categorization of post-

94. The Department is 

currently sourcing 

information from 

Municipalities. 

 

Disaster recovery 

testing for HSS not 

formally conducted. 

Unavailability of 

provision of an 

alternate Server to 

perform the testing on 

HSS 

 

The sourcing strategy 

for appointment of 

contractors is not yet 

approved as the 

department is 

addressing issues 

raised by Provincial 

Internal Audit and 

Auditor General (SA) 

 

HRM 

legislative 

compliance 

checklist 

Compliance 

levels with HRM 

legislative 

prescripts. 

Level 3 Level 3     4 4 None None 
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Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

 Audited 

Actual 

Performa 

nce 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa

nce 2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve 

ment 

   2024/ 

2025 

Deviation 

from planned 

target to 

Actual 

Achievement 

2024/2025 

Reasons or deviation 

 100% of 

compliant in 

voices paid 

within 30 days 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Percentage 

of invoices 

paid 

within 30 

days 

100% 88% 

2=152/2) 

      100% 52% 48% .During the current 

financial year 

2024/2025, the 

Department had 

accruals and payables 

amounting to 

R675 044 852, 17 for 

the 3rd quarter. 

 

During the months of 

January to March 2025 

we received 1142 

invoices amounting to 

R655 203 489.63 and 

cash flow received 

from National Treasury 

was R688 892 000,00 

therefore the 

Department couldn’t 

pay all the service 

providers on time. 

 Performance 

reports 

Number of 

performance 

reports 

received 

from the 

North West 

Housing 

Corporation 

for oversight 

monitoring 

N/A 4          4 4 None None 

 

Linking performance with budgets  

The Department spent R182 663 000 of its allocated budget in 2024/25 financial year. This translates to 

99.7 percent of total budget compared to 99.8 percent in 2023/24. The increase is as a result of 

increase in number of employee wellness programs hosted and, progress registered in staff recruitment 

with related increase for Microsoft licenses, subsistence and travel, Legal fees and purchase of tools of 

trade for new staff. 
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Sub-programme expenditure 
 

 Sub- Programme 
Name 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 

Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 

Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Office of the 

HOD 

- - - - - - 

Financial 

Management 

- - - - - - 

Corporate Services            183 303 182 663 640 166 660 166 295 365 

Total           183 303 182 663 640 166 660 166 295 365 

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The department to strengthen the monitoring and implementation of Post Audit Action Plans. Improve on 

monitoring of payments to suppliers within 30 days 

 

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors 

with Concurrent Functions 

No standardised indicators for programme 1
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4.2 Programme 2: Housing Needs, Research, Planning and Technical Services 

Purpose: To research, develop policies, and plans that respond to various housing 

programmes 

Sub-Programmes: 

 Human settlements planning monitoring and evaluation 

 Research and policy development 

 Statutory bodies secretariat support services 

 Human settlements stakeholder engagement and capacity development 

 

Institutional outcomes that each programme contributes. 

 

Sub-programme Outcome that each programme contributes to. 

Human settlements planning 

monitoring and evaluation 

 Improved good governance and accountability 

 Creation of a conducive environment for the implementation of human 

settlements programmes. 

Research and policy 

development 

 Improved governance and accountability 

 Creation of a conducive environment for the implementation of 

human settlements programmes. 

Statutory bodies secretariat 

support services 

 Improved governance and accountability 

 Creation of a conducive environment for the implementation of human 

settlements programmes. 

Human settlements stakeholder 

engagement and capacity 

development 

 Improved governance and accountability 

 Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 

Outcomes, Outputs, Output Indicators, Targets and Actual Achievements 

Programme 2 has performed fairly well. The programme has achieved three (3) out of four (4) planned 

indicators which translates to 75% achievement. The outputs will contribute towards the achievement 

of the outcome. 

The programme has achieved the following output indicators: - 

 Number of potential beneficiaries provided with consumer education. 

 Percentage of investment of the total Human Settlements allocation in PDAs 

 Number of Human Settlements Development Grant Business Plan produced 
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 Table 2.4.4.1 

NB: The deviation from the planned target to the actual achievement 2024/2025 is against the 

Q1 targets. 

 

Programme 2: Housing Needs, Research, Planning and Technical Services  

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performa 

nce 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Perform

ance 

2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve

me 

   2024/ 

2025 until 

date of re 

tabling 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

Actual 

Achievemen

t  

2024/2025 

Reasons for 

deviations 

Reasons for 

revisions to the 

Outputs / Output 

indicators / 

Annual Targets 

Creation of a 

conducive 

environment for 

the 

implementation 

of 

human 

settlement 

programme s 

HSDG/IS 

UPG 

Business 

Plans 

developed 

Number of 

Human 

Settlements 

Development 

Grant Business 

Plan produced 

1 0 1 0       1 The target was 

not planned for at 

the time of 

reporting prior to 

the re-tabling of 

the APP. 

Corrections was 

made on the 

quarterly targets of 

the 1st indicator and 

of the 3rd indicator. 

Potential 

beneficiaries 

provided with 

consumer 

education 

Number of 

potential 

beneficiaries 

provided with 

consumer 

education 

5806 3605 7000 2881 4119 The actual 

achievement is 

for one (1) 

quarter prior the 

re-tabling of the 

APP. The target 

for Q1 was 

1750. 

 

Investment of 

the total 

Human 

Settlements in 

PDAs 

Percentage of 

investment of 

the total 

Human 

Settlements 

allocation in 

PDAs 

64.75

% 

65% 57% 5% 52% The actual 

achievement is 

for one (1) 

quarter prior the 

re-tabling of the 

APP. The target 

for Q1 was 

11%.. 

 

 Acquired 

land during 

2014- 

2019 

falling within 

the PDAs 

rezoned 

Percentage of 

land acquired 

during 2014- 

2019 within the 

PDAs rezoned 

0 0   10% 

 

 

    0       0 The target was 

not planned for at 

the time of 

reporting prior to 

the re-tabling of 

the APP. 
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 Table 2.4.4.2 

Programme 2: Housing Needs, Research, Planning and Technical Services 

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited Actual 

Performance 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Perform

ance 

2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve 

ment 

   2024/ 

2025 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

Actual 

Achievemen

t 2024/2025 

Reasons for 

deviations 

Creation of a 

conducive 

environment 

for the 

implementatio

n of human 

settlement 

programmes 

HSDG/ 

ISUPG 

Business 

Plans 

developed 

Number of 

Human 

Settlements 

Development 

Grant Business 

Plan 

Produced 

1 1 1 1      1 None 

Potential 

beneficiaries  

provided with 

consumer 

education 

Number of 

potential 

beneficiaries 

provided with 

consumer 

education 

5806 6125 7000 7704 +704 The over- 

achievement is as a 

result of positive 

response by potential 

beneficiaries 

Investment of 

the total 

Human 

Settlement s in 

PDAs 

Percentage of 

investment of 

the total Human 

Settlements 

allocation in 

PDAs 

64.75% 449%  57% 68% 11% Over- achievement is 

as a result of improved 

performance by 

contractors 

in the PDAs as well as 

additional R150m 

received from National 

Department of Human 

Settlements towards the 

end of the 4th quarter 

Acquired 

land during 

2014-2019 

falling within 

the PDAs 

rezoned 

 

Percentage 

of land acquired 

during 2014- 

2019 

within the 

PDAs 

rezoned 

0% 0% 10%      0% 10% Non functionality of the 

Municipal Planning 

Tribunal (MPTs) of the 

municipalities of the 

targeted Priority 

Development Areas. 
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Linking performance with budgets 

The Department spent R29 271 000 of its allocated budget in 2024/25 financial year, translating into 96.6 

percent while 98 percent was spent in the prior year. Under-expenditure is attributed to delays in 

approvals in different stages of recruitment and cost containment affected operations of this programme. 

Sub-programme expenditure 

Sub- Programme 
Name 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Final 
Appro 
priation 

Actual 

Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropria 
tion 

Actual 

Expenditure 

(Over)/ 

Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Administration: 
Housing Needs, 
Planning, Research 
and Technical 
Services 

14 637 14 502              135 14 193 16 306 (2 113) 

Policy: Housing needs 
and, Research and 
planning 

2 285 1 915              370 4 366 2 349 2 017 

Planning: Housing 
needs and, Research 
and planning 

  9 195 8 887              308 8 398 8 389 9 

Research: Housing 
needs and, Research 
and planning 

4 195 3 967              228 3 401 2 804 597 

Total 30 312 29 271             1 041 30 358 29 848 510 
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The department will engage the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs to 

intervene in municipalities where Municipal Planning Tribunals (MPTs) have not been established to 

be established as well as, to monitor the functionality of already established MPTs. 

 

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with 

Concurrent Functions 

The department has achieved one (1) out of two (2) standardised indicators. The department has not 

done well on the “Percentage of land acquired during 2014-2019 within the PDAs rezoned. The poor 

performance is due to the non/poor function of municipal planning tribunals. 
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4.3 Programme 3: Housing Development 

Purpose: To provide integrated and sustainable human settlements through accelerating housing 

opportunities and ensure security of tenure. 

Sub-Programmes: 

 Housing subsidy management

 Human settlements project management: Bojanala District Municipality

 Human settlements project management: Dr. R.S.M. District Municipality

 Human settlements project management: NMMDM

 Human settlements project management: Dr. K.K. District Municipality

Institutional outcomes that each programme contributes 

Sub-programme Outcome that each programme contributes to. 

Housing subsidy management Improved good governance and accountability 

Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 

Human settlements project 

management: Bojanala District 

Municipality 

Improved good governance and accountability 

Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 

Human settlements project 

management: Dr. R.S.M. 

District Municipality. 

Improved good governance and accountability 

Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 

Human settlements project 

management: NMMDM 

Improved good governance and accountability 

Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 

Human settlements project 

management: Dr. K.K. District 

Municipality 

Improved good governance and accountability 

Sustainable Human Settlements and improved quality of 

household life 
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Outcomes, Outputs, Output Indicators, Targets and Actual Achievements 

Programme 3 managed to achieve three (3) out of nine (9) indicators which translate into 33,3% 

achievement. The non-achievement of the targets is as a result number of factors, namely, 

abandoning of sites by contractors, poor performance by contractors, contractors not prioritising 

registration of title deeds, delays in township proclamation. 

The Directorate: SCM is monitoring the expenditure against the 40% infrastructure budget set towards 

Women, 10% for Youth and 5% for Persons with Disabilities. The department managed to spend only 

19,9% of the infrastructure budget towards Women and 25,2% towards youth. One of the major 

challenges is the non-appointment of designated groups’ contractors, namely, Persons with 

Disabilities. 
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Table 2.4.4.1 

 
NB: The deviation from the planned target to the actual achievement 2024/2025 is against the 

Q1 targets. 

 

Programme 3: Housing Development  

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performance 

2022/2023 

Audited 

Actual 

Performan

ce 2023/ 

2024 

Planned 

Annual 

Target 

   2024/ 

   2025 

Actual 

Achieve 

ment 

   2024/ 

2025 until 

date of 

retabling 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

Actual 

Achieveme

nt 

2024/2025 

Reasons for 

deviations 

Reasons for 

revisions to the 

Outputs / Output 

indicators / Annual 

Targets 

Sustainable 

Human 

Settlements 

and 

Improved 

Quality of 

Household 

Life 

Title 

deeds 

register 

ed 

Number of 

new title 

deeds 

registered 

1275 0         1167    427 -740 The actual 

achievement (427)  

is for quarter one (1) 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP.  

Revision was made to 

the targets of the 

indicators which were 

not adding up to the 

annual target. 

Number of 

pre-1994 

title deeds 

registered 

22 79      1098         51    - 1047 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP.  

 

Number of 

post 1994 

title deeds 

registered 

 

5124 1056        6645      501     - 6131 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP.  

Revision was made 

to the targets of the 

indicators which 

were not adding up 

to the annual target. 

Number of 

post 2014 

title deeds 

registered 

157 861        2155 863 -1292 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP.  

Revision was made 

to the targets of the 

indicators which 

were not adding up 

to the annual target. 

Sites 

serviced 

Number of 

serviced 

sites delivered 

7245 8818      6054       0  -6054 Not all elements of 

a serviced sites 

were completed at 

the time of 

reporting 

 

Housing 

units 

constructed 

 

Number of 

Breaking 

New 

Grounds 

(BNG) 

houses 

delivered 

3614  1382    337   444     +107 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP.  

The corrections 

were made to the 

annual target for 

indicator on housing 

units 

 

Household 

s that 

received 

subsidies 

through 

FLISP 

Number of 

household 

s that 

received 

subsidies 

through 

FLISP 

83 36     70     16      54 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter prior 

the re-tabling of the 

APP. The target for 

Q1 was 24. 
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Infrastructure 

expenditure 

reported 

towards 

designated 

groups 

 

Percentage of 

infrastructure 

spent towards 

designated 

groups 

5%=W 

0%=Y 

0%=PWD 

20%=W 

9%=Y 

0%=PWD 

40%= W 

 

10%= Y 

 

5%= PWD 

2,9%=W 

 

4,2%=Y 

 

0%= 

Persons 

with 

Disabilities 

37,1%=W 

 

5,8%=Y 

 

5%=PWD 

The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP. The 

target for Q1 was 

5% for Women. 

 

Informal 

settlements 

upgraded 

Number of 

informal 

settlements 

upgraded to 

phase 3 of 

the 

upgrading of 

informal 

settlements 

Programme 

 (UISP) 

3 0      3 

   

     0        3 The actual 

achievement is for 

one (1) quarter 

prior the re-tabling 

of the APP. The 

indicator was not 

targeted for Q1. 

 

p 
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Table 2.4.4.2 
 

Programme 3: Housing Development 

Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performance 

2022/23  

Audited 

Actual 

Performance 

2023/2024 

Planned 

Annual 

target 

2024/2025 

**Actual 

Achieveme

nt 

2024/2025 

Deviation 

from planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

2024/25 

Reasons for deviation  

Sustainable 

Human 

Settlements 

And improved 

Quality of 

household 

Life 

Title Deeds 

registered 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of new 

title deeds 

registered 

1275 131      941   992 +51 Over-achievement is as a result 

of improved performance by 

appointed conveyancers. 

Number of pre-

1994 title deeds 

registered 

22 166       1098  107    991 The non achievement was 

primarily due to delays at 

Mafikeng Local municipality 

which requested the 

department for an extension of 

the scope for Danville Ex 17 to 

address the backlog. 

The list of beneficiaries 

submitted by the Mahikeng 

Local municipality needed 

additional information. 

Number of 

post 1994 title 

deeds 

registered 

5124 2579    6632 3044 3587 There were delays in 

processing and lodging of 

title deeds due to the 

following reasons:  

 

Rejections at Huhudi 

 

The delay of the name change 

of Ventersdorp Ext 12 to JB 

Marks. 

 

Tshing Ext 9 was not gazetted 

which delayed the processing 

of title deeds 

Number of 

post 2014 title 

deeds 

registered 

157 2136    2136  2166 +30 Over-achievement is as a result 

of improved performance by the 

responsible officials. 
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Outcome Output Output 

Indicator 

Audited 

Actual 

Performance 

2022/23  

Audited 

Actual 

Performance 

2023/2024 

Planned 

Annual 

target 

2024/2025 

**Actual 

Achievem

ent 

2024/2025 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

2024/25 

Reasons for deviation  

Sustainable 

Human 

Settlements 

And improved 

Quality of 

household Life 

Sites 

Serviced 

Number of 

serviced 

sites 

delivered 

7245  8818     6054 9841 +3787 Over achievement is as result 

of good contractors’ 

performance and an additional 

R150m received from the 

National Department of Human 

Settlements towards the end of 

the 4th quarter. 

Housing units 

constructed 

Number of 

Breaking New 

Grounds (BNG) 

houses 

delivered. 

3614 3070 3376 3189 

Housing 

Units 

 

136 

Individual 

subsidies 

-187 

 

 

 

136 

Individual 

subsidies 

Under-achievement is due to 

budget cuts which resulted in 

some contractors abandoning 

sites. 

 Number of 

households that 

received 

subsidies 

through FLISP 

83 48      70    35      35 Most of the applicants did not 

meet the minimum threshold of 

the FLISP programme. 

Infrastructure 

report 

Percentage of 

Infrastructure 

spent towards 

designated 

groups. 

5%=W 

0%=Y 

0%=PWD 

 

31,03%=W  

9%= Y 

 

0%=PWD 

40%=W 

 

10%= Y 

 

5%= PWD 

25%=W 

 

43%=Y 

 

0%=PWD 

-15,1%=W 

 

+33%=Y 

 

-5%=PWD 

There were less payments 

towards designated groups 

(Women) due to poor contractor 

performance 

Informal 

settlements 

upgraded 

Number of 

informal 

settlements 

upgraded to 

phase 3 of the 

upgrading of 

informal 

settlements 

Programme 

 (UISP) 

3 5     3      0      3 Not all elements of upgrading 

informal settlements to Phase 3 

were completed at the time of 

reporting 
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Linking performance with budgets  

The Department spent R1 827 909 000 of its allocated budget in 2024/25 financial year. This translates 

to 99.8 percent in 2024/25 while 95 percent was spent in 2023/24. The highest spending sub-

programme is Administration at 100 followed by Rural Intervention at 100 percent, followed by Rural 

Intervention at 98.0 percent, Under-expenditure is as a result of late submission of claims from developers 

and delays in approvals in different stages of recruitment. 

 

Sub-programme expenditure 
Sub- 
Programme 
Name 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Final 
Appropriat 
ion 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropria 
tion 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/ 
Under 

Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Administration: 
Housing 
Development 

        66 652    64 688          1 964       63 531   75 855 - 12 324 

Financial 
Incremental 

       135 059    119 698         15 361        83 200    75 127   8 073 

Incremental 
Intervention 

  1 049 147   1 146 997        (97 850) 1 014 387    941 971   72 416 

Social and 
Rental 
intervention 

             2 524         -    2 524 - - - 

Rural 
Intervention 

          386 687   311 847          74 840      424 287      415 871     8 416 

 
Provincial 
Intervention 

      190 626 184 679            5 947    

Total     1 830 695 1 827 909            2 786 1 585 405 1 508 824 76 581 

 
Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

 The department has resolved to prioritise 80% of the infrastructure budget for the completion of 

previous’ year multi-year projects and only 20% for new projects. 

 The department engaged with the relevant parties to agree on a seamless process that will fast track 

the process to ensure that the target committed to is achieved. 

 The department has strengthened project implementation and contract management through weekly 

project implementation meetings. 

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with 

Concurrent Function 

Programme 3 managed to achieve three (3) out of eight (8) standardised indicators which 

translates into 37, 5% achievement.



5. TRANSFER PAYMENTS

5.1. Transfer payments to public entities 

The North West Housing Corporation is the public entity of the Department charged with the 

responsibility to become a leading real estate management and development agent of the North 

West provincial government, to provide and facilitate provision of housing and other buildings for 

the benefit of lower, middle and in some instances higher income groups within societies of the 

province. Performance of the entity is monitored through quarterly reporting on financial and service 

delivery performance. Total of R44 753 000 was allocated for transfer to the entity in 2024/25 same 

amount was allocated in 2023/24 and full allocations was transferred in both financial periods. A 

fully operational Board of Directors was in place up to end of October and a substantive Chief 

Executive Officer has been appointed on a five year employment contract in 2020/21. Revenue 

collection has been a challenge with the entity and the bulk of its allocation from the Department is 

spent on operational activities. 

Name of Public 
Entity 

Key Outputs of the 
public entity 

Amount transferred 
to the public entity 

Amount spent 
by the public 
entity 

Achievements of the public 
entity  

North West 
Housing 
Corporation 

Conduct feasibility 
studies for New 
Housing Projects 
Conclude on funding 
agreement for student 
accommodation 
Secure approved 
funding. 

Facilitate sale of flats 
units Facilitate sale of 
vacant stands sold 
(NWHC) Facilitate 
issuance of tittle 

deeds 

R44 753 000 R44 753 000 Conducted feasibility studies 
for New Housing Projects 
Concluded on funding 
agreement for student 
accommodation Secured 
approved funding. 

Facilitate sale of flats units 
Facilitate sale of vacant 
stands sold (NWHC) 

Facilitate issuance of tittle 
deeds 

Housing 
Development 
Agency 

Operational costs R9 636 000 R8 584 000 Operational costs 

5.2. Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities 

None 

The table below reflects the transfer payments made for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

Name of 
transferee 

Type of 
organisation 

Purpose for 
which the 
funds were 
used 

Did the dept. 
comply with s 
38 (1) (j) of the 
PFMA 

Amount 
transferred 

(R’000) 

Amount 
spent by 
the entity 

Reasons for the 
funds unspent by 
the entity 

N/A 

40
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The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2024 to 

31 March 2025 , but no transfer payments were made. 

Name of transferee Purpose for which 
the funds were to be 
used  

Amount budgeted 
for 

(R’000) 

Amount 
transferred 

(R’000) 

Reasons why funds were not 
transferred 

N/A 

6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1. Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid 

The table below detail/s the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the department. 

Conditional Grant 1: 

Department/ Municipality to whom 
the grant has been transferred 

None 

Purpose of the grant 
N/A 

Expected outputs of the grant 
N/A 

Actual outputs achieved 
N/A 

Amount per amended DORA 
N/A 

Amount transferred (R’000) 
N/A 

Reasons if amount as per DORA not 
transferred 

N/A 

Amount spent by the department/ 
municipality (R’000) 

N/A 

Reasons for the funds unspent by 
the entity 

N/A 

Monitoring mechanism by the 
transferring department 

N/A 
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6.2. Conditional grants and earmarked funds received 

 The Department received a conditional grant allocation of R1 764 043 000 comprised 

of Human Settlements Development Grant of R1 256 908 000 and Upgrading of 

Informal Settlements Grant of R507 135 000. Total expenditure is R1 763 240 000 

made up of R1 256 243 000 HSDG and R506 978 000 for ISUPG. 

 The full grant allocation budgeted for 2024/25 was received from the National 

Department in monthly tranche payments in line with payment schedule submitted by 

the Department. A total of R1 764 043 000; inclusive of the roll-over amount of R57 

899 000, was transferred into the Provincial Exchequer grant account. 

Conditional Grant 1: Human Settlements Development Grant 

Department who transferred the 
grant  

•National Department of Human Settlements  

Purpose of the grant 

To finance the implementation of National Housing Programs for 

the creation of sustainable Human Settlements for the creation of 

sustainable Human Settlements 

Expected outputs of the grant 

The department targeted to deliver 3376 housing units 

Actual outputs achieved The department managed to deliver 3325 housing units 

Amount per amended DORA 
(R’000) 

1 256 908  

Amount received (R’000) 1 256 908 

Reasons if amount as per 
DORA was not received 

N/A 

  

Amount spent by the 
department (R’000) 

1 256 243 

Reasons for the funds unspent 
by the entity 

N/A 

Reasons for deviations on 
performance 

 

 

Delay in payment of claims due to budget cuts which led to contractors 

abandoning sites. 
Measures taken to improve 
performance 

Requesting additional funds to ensure that claims are paid on time 

Monitoring mechanism by the 
receiving department 

• Monthly and quarterly reports (delivery and financial) by 

regional managers 
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 Conditional Grant 2: Informal settlements upgrading partnership grant 

Department who transferred the 
grant  

•National Department of Human Settlements  

Purpose of the grant 

To provide funding to facilitate a programme and inclusive 

approach to upgrading informal settlements 

approach to upgrading informal settlements 

Expected outputs of the grant The department targeted to achieve 6054 serviced sites 

Actual outputs achieved The department managed to service 10 166 sites 

Amount per amended DORA  (R’000) 507 135  

Amount received (R’000) 507 135  

Reasons if amount as per DORA was 
not received 

N/A 

Amount spent by the department 
(R’000) 

506 978  

Reasons for the funds unspent by the 
entity 

N/A 

Reasons for deviations on 
performance 

N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance 

N/A 

Monitoring mechanism by the 
receiving department 

•Monthly and quarterly reports (delivery and financial) by 

regional managers 

 

7.  DONOR FUNDS  

7.1.  Donor Funds Received 

 Donor Fund 2024/25: 

Name of donor  None 

Full amount of the funding N/A 

Period of the commitment N/A 

Purpose of the funding N/A 

Expected outputs  N/A 

Actual outputs achieved N/A 
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Amount received (R’000) N/A 

Amount spent by the department 
(R’000) 

N/A 

Reasons for the funds unspent  N/A 

Monitoring mechanism by the donor N/A 

 

8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT  

8.1. Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan  

 Progress made on implementing the capital, investment and asset management plan. The 

department has managed to spend 100% of its capital budget on its infrastructure projects. 

 Infrastructure projects which have been completed in the current year and the progress in 

comparison to what was planned at the beginning of the year.  Provide reasons for material 

variances (2% variance) 

         

ProjNo Descr Balance 

Value 
Sum of 
Target 
Sites 

Sum 
of  
Actual 
sites 

Sum of  
Target 
Units 

Sum of  
Actual 
Units 

Sum of  
Total  
Budget 

Sum of Total 
 Expenditure 

B16040028/20 
2016/17 Moses 
Kotane Villages 0.91 0 0 25 145 R5,435,125.00 R36,010,512.20 

B18040029/10 Naledi Ext 29 6000 70.8 0 0 0 0 R0.00 R715,982.34 

B19040016/5 
Moses Kotane 
Mabela A Pudi 0 500 500 0 0 R1,612,226.00 R1,563,503.32 

B19040023/13 

Rustenburg - 
Rustenburg Villages 
1050 2926.4 0 0 18 31 R3,478,494.00 R6,264,639.03 

B19040023/18 

Rustenburg - 
Rustenburg Villages 
1050 0.0112 0 0 3 0 R1,117,182.00 R482,933.14 

B20040066/4 
 Ramotshere Moiloa 
Venture ,supingstad 1.2 0 0 12 60 R2,608,860.00 R12,888,837.60 

B20040066/5 
 Ramotshere Moiloa 
Venture ,supingstad 0 0 0 12 90 R2,608,860.00 R18,904,320.90 

B21010011/10 
Mafikeng Villages 
Phase 2 0.52 0 0 3 0 R1,663,435.80 R1,159,129.80 

B21010011/13 
Mafikeng Villages 
Phase 2 1.16 0 0 12 30 R2,017,224.00 R1,639,728.80 

B21010011/16 
Mafikeng Villages 
Phase 2 0.11 0 0 12 6 R2,017,224.00 R2,052,336.88 

B21010011/17 
Mafikeng Villages 
Phase 2 0.004 0 0 1 30 R1,072,440.00 R3,450,650.17 

B23040063/1 
2023/24 HDA 
Operational Support 0 0 0 0 0 R19,271,982.00 R9,636,000.00 

Grand Total     880 910 859 392 R333,488,337.30 R94,768,574.18 
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 Reasons for material variance 

 The variance is a result of budget cuts which affected the payment of contractors. Most of 

these  contractors who were not paid abandoned sites which resulted in projects not being 

completed. 

 Infrastructure projects that are currently in progress (list projects) and when are they 

expected to be completed, 

 

 Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities, 

  None 

 Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure 

  None 

 Developments relating to the above that are expected to impact on the department’s 

current expenditure. 

  N/A 

 Details as to how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including 

information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft 

  None 

 Measures taken to ensure that the department’s asset register remained up-to-date 

during the period under review.  

REGION 

OUTSTANDI

NG 

TARGETS( 

VARIOUS 

MILESTONES

)

BALANCE
Planned 

Target
Planned Budget

Planned 

Target

Planned 

Budget

Planned 

Target

Planned 

Budget

Planned 

Target
Planned Budget

Dr Ruth 

Segomotsi 

Mompati 

1896 R188,377,134.65 573 R70,922,659.76 209 27,405,939.56R     150 R32,766,550.00 190 R41,341,850.00 160 R34,817,700.00

Bojanala 1263 R283,603,121.38 1520 R196,686,191.81 146 24,675,046.90R     79 R17,770,760.00 90 R20,149,800.00 115 R25,648,725.00

Ngaka Modiri 

Molema
904 R83,241,927.15 1029 R297,443,198.90 109 18,035,640.00R     84 R17,236,413.00 100 R20,462,740.00 250 R52,557,210.00

Dr Kenneth 

Kaunda
1488 R259,952,833.57 971 R180,199,038.77 207 29,211,084.54R     63 R12,785,760.00 40 R8,534,750.00 62 R13,754,080.00

5551 R815,175,016.75 4093 R745,251,089.24 671 99,327,711.00R     376 R80,559,483.00 420 R90,489,140.00 587 R126,777,715.00

2026/2027 2027/28

PLANNEDRUNNING PROJECTS 

2024/25 2025/26SUMMARY OCTOBER 2024 SUMMARY ARPIL 2025
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 Asset management unit does asset verification on quarterly basis to ensure that    

department’s asset register remains up to date. 

 The current state of the department’s capital assets, for example what percentage is in 

good, fair or bad condition 

  None 

 Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review 

  None 

 Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog during the period under review, 

for example, has the backlog grown or become smaller?  Is the rate of progress according 

to plan? If not why, and what measures were taken to keep on track 

  None 

 

Infrastructure 
projects 

 

2024/2025 2023/2024 

Final 
Appropriation 

R’000 

Actual  

Expenditure 

R’000 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 

Final 
Appropriation 

R’000 

Actual  

Expenditure 

R’000 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 

 New and 
replacement assets  

      

Existing 
infrastructure 
assets  

      

 Upgrades and 
additions 

      

 Rehabilitation, 
renovations 
and 
refurbishments 

      

 Maintenance 
and repairs 

      

Infrastructure 
transfer  

      

 Current       

 Capital 1 764 043 1 763 221 822 1 521 874 1 432 969 88 905 

Total 1 764 043 1 763 221 822 1 521 874 1 432 969 88 905 
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PART C: GOVERNANCE 
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1. INTRODUCTION  

Commitment by the department to maintain the highest standards of governance is 

fundamental to the management of public finances and resources. Users want assurance that 

the department has good governance structures in place to effectively, efficiently and 

economically utilize the state resources, which is funded by the tax payer. 

2. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk, Ethics and Fraud Prevention Policies and Strategies 

The Risk Management unit reviewed and updated all Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud 

Prevention literature. 

Review comments were requested from the following stakeholders: - 

o Senior Managers,  

o Officials of the Department,  

o Provincial Risk Management Support,  

o Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud Prevention Committee Members. 

 All literature is updated with review comments received from the above-mentioned 

stakeholders. 

 The updated literature was presented to the Risk, Ethics and Fraud Prevention Committee 

for their final review and recommendation. 

 The Committee Members recommended all literature, and the Head of the Department 

approved it on the 28 March 2025 

 The Following are the approved Policies, Plans and Strategies  

o Risk Management Policy, 

o Risk Management Strategy and plan, 

o Risk, Ethics and Fraud Prevention Charter, 

o Fraud Prevention policy, 

o Fraud Prevention Strategy and plan, 

o Whistle blowing policy, 

o Ethics Strategy 

o Risk Appetite Framework 

 

  Risk Management Committee: - 
 

The Accounting Officer has approved the appointment of the Risk, Ethics Management and 

Fraud Prevention Committee which is responsible for conducting oversight into the 
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implementation of the risk management process in the Department. The appointed Risk, Ethics 

Management and Fraud Prevention Committee consist of Internal and External Members to 

improve independence and objectivity in their oversight roles. 

The appointed External Members include the following: -  

 Chairperson,   

 Deputy Chairperson, and   

 An additional Member 

The appointed Internal Members are all Chief Directorate of the Department, as they are the 

Risk Owners within their directorates. The key responsibilities of the appointed Risk, Ethics 

Management and Fraud Prevention Committee include: - 

 Review and recommendation of the Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud Prevention 

policies, strategies, plans, reports and registers. 

 Play oversight in the implementation of the risk management processes within the 

Department and make recommendations to improve the processes and systems to 

ensure effectiveness and efficiencies of systems.  

 
  Departmental Risk Assessment 
 

The Department conducts the strategic risk assessments on a quarterly basis according to the 

approved Risk Management strategy and plan. The risk assessment exercise is done together 

with the Strategic planning review session of the Department.  Senior Managers review the set 

outcomes and input indicators and identify strategic and operational risks that can hamper the 

achievement of the set objectives. 
 

o  The strategic and operational risk registers are updated with the reviewed risks, new 

emerging risk and their presentation to the Risk, Ethics management and Fraud 

Prevention Committee for recommendations.  

o  D epartmental risk registers were recommended by the Independent Risk, Ethics 

Management and Fraud Prevention Chairperson on the 26 March 2024, and the Head 

of the Department approved them on the 28 March 2024. 

 

  Operational, ICT, Fraud and Ethics Risk Assessment: - 
 

Risk Management unit facilitate the risk assessment process with all directorates within the 

Department.  Middle Management and lower officials are responsible for the identification of the 

operational risks. 
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Risk assessment includes the following: -  

 Identify risks which are inclusive of new emerging risk,  

 Measure the identified risks in terms of likelihood and impact,  

 Develop Control Measures to mitigate the identified risks  

 Set key dates for the implementation of the treatment plans and,  

 Quarterly follow –up on the implementation of the agreed treatment plans. 

 
Monitoring of the treatment plans: - 

 

On a quarterly basis Programme Managers must report on the implementation of the treatment 

plans/Control Measures. The implementation of the Control Measures assists in the mitigation 

of the identified risks to an acceptable level.  

Risk Management unit monitor the implementation of the Control Measures on a quarterly 

basis. The Risk Owner re-rates the risks after the implementation of the treatment plans in 

order to determine if risks are within the tolerance level and set appetite. 

 

Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud Prevention Committee sittings: -  

The Risk Management unit facilitated the setting up of the following scheduled quarterly 

Meetings on the following dates: -   

 14 March 2024 

 17 July 2024 

 20 November 2024 

 27 March 2025 

Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud Prevention Reporting: -  

Risk Management unit has reported on the status of the implementation of the approved plans 

on a quarterly basis to the following stakeholders: - 

 The Risk, Ethics Management and Fraud Prevention Committee, 

 The Head of the Department, 

 Provincial Risk Management Support unit, 

 Provincial Internal Audit Committee. 

The Committee Members provide oversight into the reported information and made 

recommendations which have resulted in the improvement of systems.  
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Progress made in the risk management unit: -  

 Senior Managers assessed the Departmental risk management maturity and develop a plan 

of improvement. 

 Monthly reporting by Senior Managers on the progress in the implementation of the agreed-

upon treatment plans as a measure to mitigate identified risks, 

 Risk Management forms part of the Departmental Management Committee meeting agenda 

to report on progress made and challenges. 

 Risk Management function forms part of the Senior Managers Key performance areas for 

accountability and responsibility. 

 

Risk Management Challenge: 
 

 The Risk unit is not fully capacitated with adequate human resources, as only two (2) 

officials are working in the unit. 

 In-effective implementation of the treatment plans by Senior Managers. 

 
   

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

 The department has an approved fraud prevention strategy and a plan. 

 The plan is implemented on a quarterly basis in order to ensure that adequate preventative 

and detective measures are put in place in order to mitigate the identified fraud risks. 

 The Department has an approved Whistle blowing policy. The officials of the Department 

and the communities are encouraged to report all allegations of fraud and corrupt practices 

using the National hotline. 

 The Department uses platforms like Thuntsha Lerole to conduct awareness and educating 

the public and communities on types of fraud and corruption and how to report those 

allegations. 

 The Risk Management unit conducted quarterly telephonic enquiries at the Office of the 

Premier and Public Service Commission on any reported allegations from the National 

Hotline. The department has no reported cases of allegations of fraud and corrupt activities. 

 

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 The Department has an Ethics Strategy which is approved by the Head of the 

Department. 

 According to the approved strategy all Senior Managers, Middle Management, other 
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designated officials within the Supply Chain Management and Finance unit declared 

their financial interest and assets. 

 In the 2024 financial year only 1 (one) Senior Manager did not declare their financial 

interest on time, as the official was on suspension. 

 After the disclosure period the ethics unit verified all submitted disclosures and found that 

only 4 (four) officials had conflict of interest in their disclosure. 

 A report on the conflict of interest was prepared and submitted to the office of the Head of 

the Department and the Executive Authority for action. 

 Formal warning letters were written to the affected officials who had conflict of interest in 

their disclosure through the office of the Head of the Department. 

 A detailed report on the outcome of the disclosure of financial interest by designated officials 

was prepared, signed off by the Head of the Department and it was forwarded to the Public 

Service Commission. 

5. CODE OF CONDUCT 

 The Department uses the Public Service Regulation Code of Conduct. 

 Yearly training on the Code of Conduct is conducted to all officials within the Department. 

for the period under review training for officials was done in the second quarter of the new 

financial year. 

 It is the responsibility of each Manager to ensure that their staff comply to the Code of 

Conduct. If non-compliance is found, Managers are required to prepare formal letter to 

Labour Relations unit in order to report about the matter. 

 The Labour Relations unit then conduct its own investigation and prepare a report to the 

Accounting Officer within a reasonable time. 

 

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES  

 None 

7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES  

Dates of the 

meeting 

Matters raised by the Portfolio Committee Department 

Response 

18/07/2024  Update the situational analysis to address the following: 

o Housing backlog 

o Land acquisition 

 Submit reports on the following: 

o Number of projects for implementation 

o Payment of service providers 

Situational analysis 

was updated. 
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o Consequence management in terms of late payment of 

suppliers 

o Title deeds backlog 

o Housing backlog for the past 10 years 

 

 

Reports were 

submitted 

23/08/2024  What were the accruals, reasons for those accruals and total 

amount of accruals. 

 No correlation between non financials v/s financials, why? 

 Submit a report on a breakdown of where housing units were 

built 

 Which groups are prioritised for housing? 

Responses were 

submitted in writing 

29/10/2024  Provide a list of appointed contractors 

 How many (%) women contractors have been appointed 

 Why has dept not investigated irregular expenditure? 

 Submit updated (MIs) PAAP to the Portfolio Committee. 

 Is the dept blacklisting non performing/ abandoning sites 

contractors? 

 How is the dept planning to unblock blocked projects? 

 Disjuncture between financial and non financial performance, 

especially on title deeds, why? 

 What is the role of NWHC as an entity to the department? 

Responses were 

submitted in writing 

12/11/2024  How is the dept going to recover from the over-expenditure of 

over 4%? 

 What is it that the dept will do to address the under-achievement 

on Pre 94 title deeds? 

 No achievement on FLISP, why? 

 How far is the dept in dealing with the issue of the HSS and 

General Plan? 

 What caused the delay on the verification for title deeds? 

 How many informal settlements are to be upgraded in the 

Province? 

 What is the relationship between FLISP and BNG housing? 

Why is FLISP not with NWHC? 

 NWHC lack of Board is not appearing in the dept’s risks, why? 

Responses were 

submitted in writing 
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8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS  

 

Resolution 
No. 

Subject Details 

 

Response by 
the 
department 

Resolved 
(Yes/No) 

1. Irregular 
expenditure 

How far is the Loss Control 
in finalising the Irregular 
expenditure report. 

Report submitted Yes 

2. Sourcing strategy Submit a copy of 
sourcing strategy to 
PPAC 

Copy of the 
sourcing strategy 
submitted 

Yes 

3. Investigation of 
process 

 Outline the steps and 
explain how far the 
department in terms of total 
number of cases is 
investigated 

Investigation 
process submitted 

Yes 
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9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORT 

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 

opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial year 

in which it 

first arose 

Progress made in clearing / 

resolving the matter 

Strategic planning and performance 

management 

Specific information systems were not 

established to enable the monitoring of 

progress made towards achieving targets, core 

objectives and service delivery, as required by 

public service regulation 25(1)(e)(i) and (iii). 

2021-22 The Department has established a 

verification committee with a sole 

mandate of ensuring that the reported 

achievements are supported by 

adequate portfolio of evidence. The 

verification committee performs 

reviews on a monthly and quarterly 

basis 

Expenditure management  

Effective and appropriate steps were not taken 

to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to 

R1 354 159 000, as disclosed in note 31 to the 

annual financial statements, as required by 

section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury 

regulation 9.1.1. Most of the irregular 

expenditure was caused by contracts awarded 

without following competitive bidding 

processes. Irregular expenditure of R65 807 

078 was incurred on a key project for the 

construction of 700 houses in Kopela Village. 

2021-22 The Department has advertised for a 

new supplier database for 

construction of low-cost houses and 

installation of internal services. 

Furthermore, a new sourcing strategy 

was sent to Provincial Internal Audit 

and Auditor General (SA) for review in 

efforts to curb the increase in irregular 

expenditure. In addition, the 

Department has already submitted a 

condonement request to Provincial 

Treasury. 

Procurement and contract management  

Goods and services with a transaction value 

above R1 000 000 were procured without 

inviting competitive bids and deviations were 

approved by the accounting officer, although it 

was practical to invite competitive bids, contrary 

to treasury regulation 16A6.1 and paragraph 

3.3.1 of National Treasury Instruction Note 2 of 

2021-22. Similar non-compliance was also 

reported in the prior year. 

2021-22 The Department has advertised for a 

new supplier database for 

construction of low-cost houses and 

installation of internal services. 

Furthermore, a new sourcing strategy 

was sent to Provincial Internal Audit 

and Auditor General (SA) for review in 

efforts to curb the increase in irregular 

expenditure. In addition, the 

Department has already submitted a 

condonement request to Provincial 

Treasury. 

Consequence management 

 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence that disciplinary steps were 

taken against officials who had incurred 

irregular expenditure, as required by section 

38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was because 

investigations into irregular expenditure were 

not performed. 

2021-22 Consequence management is in 

process as part of the condonement 

request submitted to Provincial 

Treasury. 
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10.  INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT    

 

Internal control function is currently operating at 80% staff capacity, with only two vacant  positions. 

Main work performed included: 

 Developing the post-audit action plans and monitoring their implementation 

 Facilitating audits performed by both the Auditor-General and Provincial Internal Audit 

 Identification of unauthorised, irregular, and fruitless and wasteful expenditure through post-

verification of payment vouchers  

 Reporting on progress registered on the implementation of post audit action plans 

 

11.  INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES 

   Key activities: 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to 

add value and improve an organization's operations. It helps an organization accomplish its 

objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 

effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes. 

  Key objectives: 

Provide a value-add risk based internal audit service to the department. 

 
Summary of audit work done 

For the financial year under review 27 internal audit assignments were performed. Work performed 

was based on a risk-based internal audit plan and included audits of: risk management, supply chain 

management; financial statements, reporting on pre-determined objectives, transfer payments, 

conditional grants and the implementation of audit action plans etc. Based on the internal audit work 

performed recommendations have been made to the Department for the enhancement and 

improvement of the effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance processes. 

 Key activities and objectives of the audit committee 

 The audit committee, amongst others, reviews the following:  

(a) the effectiveness of the internal control systems.  

(b) the effectiveness of the internal audit function.  

(c) the risk areas of the institution’s operations to be covered in the scope of internal and 

external audits.  
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(d) the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to 

management and other users of such information.  

(e) any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external 

audits.  

(f) the institution’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.  

(g) the activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, 

coordination with the external auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the 

responses of management to specific recommendations 

 Key objectives 

To contribute to the oversight function of the design and implementation of effective corporate 

governance, financial and performance management, risk management and internal controls 

with a view of achieving quality service delivery. 

 Attendance of audit committee meetings by audit committee members; 

Name Qualification

s 

Internal 

or 

external 

Role Date appointed Date 

resigned 

No 

meetings 

attended 

Central Audit Committee   

Ms P. Mzizi CA(SA) External Chairperson 14 February 2022 N/A 6 

Mr P. Tjie B.Com, PMD External Member 14 February 2022 N/A 6 

Mr. L. Ally CA(SA) External Member 14 February 2022 N/A 6 

Cluster Audit Committee   

Mr P. Tjie B.Com, PMD External Chairperson 14 February 2022 N/A 7 

Ms. H 

Masedi 

M.Com External Member 14 February 2022 N/A 7 

Mr M. 

Terheyden 

CA(SA) External Member 14 February 2022 N/A 6 

Mr T 

Boltman 

Certified 

Internal 

Auditor 

External Member 14 February 2022  7 
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 Remuneration of audit committee members 

o Rates 

o Whether audit committee members who worked or are working for an organ of state 

are being remunerated. 

o Total audit committee expenditure for the reporting period. 

12.  AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 

   

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2025. 

Part 1:  Audit Committee Reflections  

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1) 

(a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and Treasury Regulation 3.1. 

 
The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its 

Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged 

its responsibilities as contained therein. The Audit Committee has functioned without hindrance or 

limitations throughout the reporting period. 

Part 2:  Audit Committee Composition and Meeting Attendance 

The Cluster Audit Committee consists of four external members. The committee is properly 

constituted, and independent and has a diverse and appropriate mix of qualifications, skills, and 

experience. 

 
The Audit Committee meet at least four times per annum as the Central Audit Committee and also 

four times per annum as the Cluster Audit Committee as per its approved terms of reference. During 

the current year four (4) scheduled and two (2) special meetings were held by the Central Audit 

Committee and four (4 ) scheduled and three (3 ) special meetings were held by the Cluster Audit 

Committee.  
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 Meeting attendance 

AC member Scheduled Special Total 

Mr M.P Tjie 4 3 7 

Ms H Masedi 4 3 7 

Mr M Terheyden 4 3 7 

Mr T Boltman 4 3 7 

 

The table above discloses relevant information on the audit committee members and meeting 

attendance. 

Part 3:  Audit Committee Focus Areas 

Effectiveness of the internal control systems 

In line with the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee 

and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is 

achieved by evaluating internal controls to determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by 

developing recommendations for enhancement or improvement. The accounting officer retains 

responsibility for implementing such recommendations as per Treasury Regulation 3.1.12.  

 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, it was noted that matters were reported indicating 

material deficiencies in the system of internal controls in areas pertaining to reporting on pre-

determined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations.   

 
Through our analysis of audit reports and engagement with the Department we can report that the 

system on internal control for the period under review was adequate but not effective.  

 
A matter of concern for the Audit Committee that has been raised with the department continuously 

is that the department is currently not implementing all internal and external audit action plans agreed 

upon. Based on our interaction with the department we conclude that the action plan management 

system has not been implemented adequately and effectively to address internal and external audit 

findings, and the Audit Committee and Internal Audit have recommended specific improvements in 

this regard. 
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The Audit Committee remains concerned with the slow progress in the finalisation of irregular  expenditure. 

The current status of the implementation of the guideline(s) and instruction(s) as issued by National 

Treasury to resolve irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is inadequate. 

 
Effectiveness of risk management 

Based on the quarterly audit committee reviews, the departmental risk and fraud management system 

is not adequate and effective. 

 
In-Year Management and Quarterly Reporting 

The quality of the in-year financial and performance reporting including interim financial statements 

are a concern to the Audit Committee.  

The Audit Committee has recommended that the department prepare interim financial statements that 

comply with the financial reporting framework (Modified Cash Standard (MCS)). This will assist in 

performing reconciliations timeously and in eliminating year-end adjustments. 

The Audit Committee has engaged with management to remedy shortcomings relating to reports on 

performance against predetermined objectives. 

Evaluation of the Financial Statements  

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft annual financial statements prepared by the department 

and has advised the accounting officer to ensure that all the review notes and comments of Internal 

Audit, the Accountant General and the Audit Committee are fully addressed prior to submission of the 

annual financial statements to the Auditor General South Africa.  

 
Evaluation of Performance Information 

 
The Audit Committee has reviewed the section on performance information included in the draft 

annual report prepared by the department and has advised the accounting officer to ensure that all 

the review notes and comments of the Internal Audit and Audit Committee are fully addressed prior 

to the submission of the annual report to the Auditor General South Africa. 

 

Compliance with laws and regulations 

The Audit Committee is concerned with the status of compliance with laws and regulations.  If the 

department does not implement an adequate and effective compliance framework and system, non-

compliance and irregular expenditure will continue to occur. 
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Internal Audit 

The accounting officer is obliged, in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, to ensure 

that the department has a system of internal audit under the control and direction of the Audit 

Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function has properly discharged 

its functions and responsibilities during the year under review. 

The Audit Committee also notes that the deficiencies in the risk management system mentioned 

above impact on the implementation of the risk-based audit approach. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function maintains an effective internal quality 

assurance programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity and that as determined 

during the external quality assessment review concluded in December 2024, that a “generally 

conforms rating” for conformance with the mandatory elements of the International Professional 

Practice Framework (IPPF) and “generally effective rating” (core measurement from 2025 which will 

affect overall rating from that year as per the Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS)) can be applied to 

the internal audit work. 

Internal Audit has adopted the GIAS effective 9 January 2025 and the implementation thereof is in 

progress. 

Auditor General South Africa 

We have reviewed the department’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous year 

and based on the interaction with the department and the internal audit reports; the committee is not 

satisfied that all matters have been adequately addressed.  

General 

Signed on behalf of the Cluster Audit Committee by: 

 M.P TJIE 
Chairperson of the  .................................. 

Cluster Audit Committee  MP Tjie 

13 August 2025 


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B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE 

requirements  of the BBBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade, Industry 

and Competition.   

Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate Levels 1 – 8) 

with regards to the following: 

Criteria 

Response 

Yes / No 

Discussion 

(include a discussion on your response and indicate what 
measures have been taken to comply) 

Determining qualification criteria for 
the issuing of licences, concessions 
or other authorisations in respect of 
economic activity in terms of any 
law? 

No N/A 

Developing and implementing a 
preferential procurement policy? 

Yes For all procurement above R30 000 to R50m 

preference point system of 80/20 is applied where 

80 is for price and 20 for BBBEE points and 90/10 

for procurement above R50m 

Determining qualification criteria for 
the sale of state-owned enterprises? 

No N/A 

Developing criteria for entering into 
partnerships with the private sector? 

No N/A 

Determining criteria for the awarding 
of incentives, grants and investment 
schemes in support of Broad Based 
Black Economic Empowerment? 

No N/A 

13 
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT 
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1. INTRODUCTION

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The Department is operating with an interim approved organizational structure which has four 

hundred and fifty-eight (458) positions. Three hundred and sixty-five (365) positions are 

regarded as funded and loaded on the PERSAL system, three hundred and four (304) are 

filled permanently including interns and sixty one (61) are vacant.

 Currently the Department have prioritised restructuring and ensuring that all newly defined

positions are job evaluated and ensure that the organizational structure is approved.  The

proposed structure does not cater for full of operation of the Department. Majority of the units

will be under resourced due to no availability of budget to have a fit for purpose organizational

structure. Normal recruitment strategies of filling vacant positions happens as and when posts

become vacant, and only prioritised positions are filled. Interview and practical questionnaires

are commonly used for recruitment processes, as well as competency assessment and Nyukela

for Senior Management positions.

 Two hundred and sixteen (216) performance annual assessment for 2023/24 received by the

30th May 2024 and payment for pay progression of an amount of R189 499,75 for was completed

on the 16 and 17 September 2024 for 2023/24 performance assessment. Two hundred and

twenty-five (225) officials have submitted the performance agreements for 2024/25 on or before

the 31st May 2024 and six (6) have submitted late after the 31st May 2024 and thirty two (32)

officials did not submit. Ten (10) out of sixteen (16) Senior Managers have submitted the 2024/

2025 performance contract.

 The Department have successfully developed and implemented 2024 Wellness plans and

reports and submitted to both Office of the Premier and the Department of Public Service and

Administration. Various employee and wellness activities were performed in the year under

review.
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3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  

3.1  Personnel related expenditure 

  

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025  

Programme Total expenditure 
(R’000) 

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
expenditure 

(R’000) 

Professional 
and special 

services 
expenditure 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of 
total 

expenditure 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

ADMINISTRATION R182 663 000,00 R81 326 000,00 R303 000,00 R0,00 4 R492 928,00 

HOUSING 
NEEDS,PLANNING 
& RESEARCH 

R29 271 000,00 R26 082 000,00 - R0,00 1 R668 795,00 

HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT 

R1 827 909 000,00 R53 229 000,00 - R0,00 3 R537 667,00 

Total        R2 039 843 000,00 R160 637 000,00 R303 000,00 R0,00 8 R530 059,00 

 

Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

Salary band 
Personnel 

expenditure  
% of total 

personnel cost 
No. of 

Employees  

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)  R2 569 059,27  2 17 R 151 121,00 

Skilled (Levels 3-5)  R26 485 470,00  15 105 R 252 243,00 

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8)  

R52 381 993,75  30 95 R 551 389,00 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12)  

R55 212 708,63  32 70 R 788 753,00 

Senior and Top Management 
(Level 13-16) 

R21 470 803,88  13 16 R 1 341 925,00 

Non-Permanent Worker   0 0 R 0,00 

Total R158 120 035,53 92 304 R 520 132,00 

        

 

Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Homeowners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the period 1 April 

2024 and 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Homeowners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the period 1 April 2024 to 

31 March 2025 

 

 

3.2 Employment and Vacancies 

 

Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2024 

 

 

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2024 
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3.3  Filling of SMS Posts 

 Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2024 
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Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2024 

 

 

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and 

filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months 

Due to none availability of budget to fill vacant posts 

 

 

 

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months 

None availability of budget to fill vacant posts  
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Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 

months for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months 

Posts were not advertised because of none availability of budget 

 

 

 

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months 

Posts not filled due to none availability of budget 

 

 

3.4  Job Evaluation 

 Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

 

 

Table 3.4.2  Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for the period 1 

April 2024 to 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.4.3  Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by   occupation for the period 

1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

 

Table 3.4.4  Profile of employees who have  salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation for the period 

1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 
 

3.5 Employment Changes 

 Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.5.2  Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

 

Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 
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3.6 Employment Equity  

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 
occupational categories as on 31 March 2025 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 

occupational bands as on 31 March 2025 

 



Annual Report for 2024/25 Financial Year 

Vote 14: Department of Human Settlements 

North West Province 

 
 

74 

Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 

 

 

Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  

 

 

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  

 

 

3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members 

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2024 

 

 

Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 May 

2024 
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Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements 

as on 31 May 2024 

 

 

3.8 Performance Rewards 

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  

 

 

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the 

period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  
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Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  

 

 

Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the 

period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025  
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3.9 Foreign Workers 

Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025  

 
 

Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

 

3.10 Leave utilisation  

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025 

 

 

Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025 
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Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025 

 

Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025  

 

 

Table 3.10.5 Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

 

3.11 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes 

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure (EHW)  
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3.12 Labour Relations  

 

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

 

Total number of Collective agreements None 
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Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025

 

Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 

2025 

 

 

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

 

Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 
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Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025  

 

 

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 
 

3.13 Skills development 

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025  
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

 

3.14 Injury on duty 

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

  



Annual Report for 2024/25 Financial Year 

Vote 14: Department of Human Settlements 

North West Province 

 
 

84 

 

3.15 Utilisation of Consultants 

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 

March 2025 

 

 

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically 

Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 

2025 
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Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged 

Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 

 

3.16 Severance Packages 

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 
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PART E: PFMA COMPLIANCE REPORT 
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1. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL, UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

AND MATERIAL LOSSES   

1.1. Irregular expenditure 

a) Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 

Description  2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Opening balance  5 279 113 3 924 954 

Adjustment to opening balance 0 0 

Opening balance as restated 5 279 113 3 924 954 

Add: Irregular expenditure confirmed 1 636 909 1 354 158 

Less: Irregular expenditure condoned 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure not condoned and removed 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure recoverable1 0 0 

Less: Irregular expenditure not recoverable and written off 0 0 

Closing balance  6 916 022 5 279 113 

 

2023/2024 

Included on the total amount of R 5 279 112 924,87, R 3 924 954 094.78 relating to opening balance from 

prior years and an amount of R 1 354 158 830.09 which relates to the current year expenditure . 

2024/2025 

Included on the total amount of R 6 916 022 042.84 is the  R 5 279 112 924.87  relating to opening balance 

from prior years and an amount of R 1 636 909 099.98  which relates to the current year expenditure. 

 

Reconciling notes 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure that was under assessment  0 0 

Irregular expenditure that relates to the prior year and identified in the current year 0 0 

Irregular expenditure for the current year 1 636 909 1 354 158 

Total   1 636 909 1 354 158 

 

 

                       

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b) Details of irregular expenditure (under assessment, determination, and investigation) 

Description2 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure under assessment 0 0 

Irregular expenditure under determination 6 916 022 5 279 113 

Irregular expenditure under investigation 0 0 

Total  6 916 022 5 279 113 

 

c) Details of irregular expenditure condoned 

Description 2024/2025 20232024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure condoned   

Total    

 

d) Details of irregular expenditure removed - (not condoned) 

Description 2024/2025 20232024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure NOT condoned and removed   

Total    

 

e) Details of irregular expenditure recoverable 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure recoverable   

Total    

 

f) Details of irregular expenditure written off (irrecoverable) 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Irregular expenditure written off   

Total    

 

 

 

                       

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g) Details of non-compliance cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional 

arrangement (where such institution is not responsible for the non-compliance) 

Description 

 

 

 

 

Total  

 

h) Details of irregular expenditure cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional 

arrangement (where such institution is responsible for the non-compliance)3 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

   

   

   

   

Total    

 

i) Details of disciplinary or criminal steps taken as a result of irregular expenditure 

Disciplinary steps taken 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                       

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1.2. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

a) Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Description  2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Opening balance  68 43  

Adjustment to opening balance 0 0  

Opening balance as restated 68 43 

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure confirmed 1 256 25 

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable4 0 0 

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure not recoverable and written off 0 0 

Refer to paragraphs 3.12, 3.13 and 3.14 of Annexure A (PFMA Compliance and Reporting Framework) to National Treasury Instruction  
No. 4 of 2022/2023 
1 Transfer to receivables  
 

Closing balance  1 325 68 

 

2023/2024 

Included in the R 68 295.90 is the opening amount of R 32 000, R 11 000 which relates to prior year 

expenditure adjustment, R 25 436.90 which relates to current year expenditure 

2024/2025 

Included in the R 1325 654.75 is the opening amount of R 68 501.17 which relates to prior year and R 

1 256 153.58 which relates to current year expenditure.  

 

Reconciling notes 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that was under assessment 0 0 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that relates to the prior year and identified in the 
current year 

0 0 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current year 1 256 25 

Total  1 256 25 

 

 

 

 

                       


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b) Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure (under assessment, determination, and investigation) 

Description5 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under assessment 0 0 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under determination 1 325 68 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under investigation 0 0 

Total  1 325 68 

 

c)Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable 0 0 

Total  0 0 

 

D)Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure not recoverable and written off 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off 0 0 

Total  0 0 

 

a) Details of disciplinary or criminal steps taken as a result of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Disciplinary steps taken 

 

 

 

Total  
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1.3. Unauthorised expenditure 

a) Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Opening balance 0 0 

Adjustment to opening balance 0                            0 

Opening balance as restated 0 0 

Add: unauthorised expenditure confirmed 0 0 

Less: unauthorised expenditure approved with funding 0 0 

Less: unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 0 0 

Less: unauthorised expenditure recoverable6 0 0 

Less: unauthorised not recoverable and written off7 0 0 

Closing balance  0         0 

 

Reconciling notes 

Description 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Unauthorised expenditure that was under assessment  0 0 

Unauthorised expenditure that relates to the prior year and identified in the current year 0 0 

Unauthorised expenditure for the current year 0 0 

Total  0 0 

b) Details of unauthorised expenditure (under assessment, determination, and investigation) 

Description8 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Unauthorised expenditure under assessment 0 0 

Unauthorised expenditure under determination 0 0 

Unauthorised expenditure under investigation 0 0 

Total  0 0 

 

                       










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1.4. Additional disclosure relating to material losses in terms of PFMA Section 40(3)(b)(i) 
&(iii))9 

a) Details of material losses through criminal conduct  

Material losses through criminal conduct 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Theft 0 0 

Other material losses 0 0 

Less: Recoverable 0 0 

Less: Not recoverable and written off 0 0 

Total  0 0 

 

a) Details of other material losses 

Nature of other material losses 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Payment for duplicate service 6 861 6 861 

   

   

   

   

Total  6 861 6 861 

 

One service provider claimed for work done on two different roles while the other is a result of an invoice 
overstated in excess of the value of works certified. The matter was referred to Office of the Premier for 
investigations and the letter of demand was issued to the service provider.  

 

 

b) Other material losses recoverable 

Nature of losses 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

Payment for duplicate service 6 861  6 861 

   

   

   

   

Total  6 861 6 861 
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One service provider claimed for work done on two different roles while the other is a result of an invoice 
overstated more than the value of works certified. The matter was referred to Office of the Premier for 
investigations and the letter of demand was issued to the service provider. 

 

a) Other material losses not recoverable and written off 

Nature of losses 2024/2025 2023/2024 

R’000 R’000 

None 0 0 

   

   

   

   

Total  0 0 

 

2. LATE AND/OR NON-PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS 

 

 Description Number of 
invoices 

Consolidated 

Value 

 R’000 

Valid invoices received 4362 19 647 24 

Invoices paid within 30 days or agreed period 2309 899 173 

Invoices paid after 30 days or agreed period 2053 10 655 51 

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid and without dispute) 93 32 900 6 

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid and in dispute) 0 0 

 

All invoices that are unpaid was because of insufficient funds due to budget cuts. 

 

3. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

3.1. Procurement by other means: NONE 

  

Project description Name of supplier Type of procurement 
by other means 

Contract 
number 

Value of 
contract 
R’000 

     

     

     

Total  0 
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3.2. Contract variations and expansions 

 

Project description Name of 
supplier 

Contract 
modificati
on type  
(Expansio
n or 
Variation) 

Contract 
number 

Original 
contract value 

Value of 
previous 
contract 
expansion/s or 
variation/s (if 

applicable) 

Value of current 
contract 
expansion or 
variation 

    R’000 R’000 R’000 

Design & Installation 
of internal service 
for (1849) sites in 
Mbeki Sun area 
within the 
jurisdiction of 
Rustenburg local 
Municipality. 

Leano 87 
Solutions 
(PTY) LTD 

Subsidy 
Quantum 
Adjustment 

B20040028/2 87 348 609 - 25 941 470 

Design & Installation 
of internal service 
for thousand (500) 
sites in Popo Molefe 
area within the 
jurisdiction of 
Rustenburg local 
Municipality. 

Mabokele 
Projects 

Subsidy 
Quantum 
Adjustment 

B20040029/6 23 622 500 - 7 015 000 

Design & Installation 
of internal 
reticulation of 2302 
sites at Kanana ext, 
16 within Matlosana 
local Municipality. 

M Civils Additional 
Funding 
due to Long 
Street 
fronts 

B19040001/2 306 810 610 - 74 992 610 

Construction of 704 
People's Housing 
projects( PHP) units 
at Madibeng local 
Municipality 

Utshani 
Fund 

Additional 
Funding 
due to 
Geotechnic
al and 
Transport 
Allowance 

B14100005/1 38 372 224 17 548 679 3 764 955 

Design & Installation 
of internal service 
for thousand (1000) 
sites in Popo Molefe 
area within the 
jurisdiction of 
Rustenburg local 
Municipality. 

Reteng Civil 
Projects 
(PTY) LTD 

Subsidy 
Quantum 
Adjustment 

B20040029/3 47 241 000 - 14 030 000 

18 625 410 7 983 847 140 085 

27 048 484 8 687 848 
 

4 444 299 
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32 264 243 7 986 820 3 878 895 

47 241 000 14 070 000 5 850 459 

47 241 000 14 030 000 8 527 449 

       

Total 675 815 080 

 

57 680 194 

 

148 585 222 
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Report of the auditor-general to North West Provincial Legislature on 

vote no. 14: Department of Human Settlements 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Human Settlements set out on 

pages 114 to 169, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position 

as at 31 March 2025, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets 

and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Department of Human Settlements as at 31 March 2025 and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Modified Cash 

Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance 

Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act 24 of 2024 (Dora). 

Basis for opinion 

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the 

auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.  

4. I am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 

Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 

International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that 

are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matters  

6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

7. As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R1 

256 000 was incurred due to the additional liability paid to GEPF due to employee whose 

contract was not terminated on PERSAL after the end of the contract. Fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure amounting to R1 256 000 was incurred. 



Litigations and claims 

8. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the department is the defendant in several

claims amounting to R296 124 000. A large portion of the department’s claims relates to

services rendered for project management. The department is opposing the claims, and the

matter is currently before the court.

Payables not recognised 

9. As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, payables of R398 031 000 exceeded the

payment term of 30 days, as required by treasury regulation 8.2.3. This amount, in turn,

exceeded the R4 467 000 of voted funds to be surrendered by R393 564 000 as per the

statement of financial position. The amount of R393 564 000 would therefore have constituted

unauthorised expenditure had the amounts due been paid on time.

Other matter 

10. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules 

11. The supplementary information set out on pages 170 to 177 does not form part of the financial

statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and,

accordingly, I do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

12. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in accordance with the MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and Dora, and for

such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

13. In preparing the  financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the

department’s ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating

to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate

governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or has

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements 

14. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an

auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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15. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in

the annexure to this auditor’s report. This description, which is located at page 109 - 110, forms

part of my auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in

terms thereof, I must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported

performance against predetermined objectives for the selected programme presented in the

annual performance report. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of the

annual performance report.

17. I selected the following programme presented in the annual performance report for the year

ended 31 March 2025 for auditing. I selected a programme that measures the department’s

performance on its primary mandated functions and that is of significant national, community or

public interest.

Programme Page 
numbers 

Purpose 

Programme 3: Housing 
development 

35 - 38 To provide integrated and sustainable 
human settlements through accelerating 
housing opportunities and security of 
tenure. 

18. I evaluated the reported performance information for the selected programme against the

criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in

the general notice. When an annual performance report is prepared using these criteria, it

provides useful and reliable information and insights to users on the department’s planning and

delivery on its mandate and objectives.

19. I performed procedures to test whether:

 the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the

department’s mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

 all the indicators relevant for measuring the department’s performance against its primary

mandated and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included

 the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy to understand and can be

applied consistently, as well as verifiable so that I can confirm the methods and processes

to be used for measuring achievements

 the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific,

time bound and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be

delivered and by when, the required level of performance as well as how performance will

be evaluated
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 the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as

those committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

 the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the

prescribed manner and is comparable and understandable.

 there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the reasons

provided for any over- or underachievement of targets

20. I performed the procedures for the purpose of reporting material findings only; and not to

express an assurance opinion or conclusion.

21. I did not identify any material findings on the reported performance information for the selected

programme.

Other matters 

22. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets 

23. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned

targets and provides explanations for over- or under achievements.

24. The table that follows provide information on the achievement of planned targets and lists the

key service delivery indicators that were not achieved as reported in the annual performance

report. The reasons for any underachievement of targets are included in the annual

performance report on pages 35 to 38.

Programme 3: Housing development 

Targets achieved: 33.3% 

Budget spent: 99,8% 

Key service delivery indicator not achieved Planned target Reported achievement 

Number of pre 1994 title deed registered 1 098 107 

Number of post 1994 title deeds registered 6 632 3 044 

Number of breaking new grounds (BNG) 
houses delivered 

3 376 3 189 

Number of households that received subsidies 
through FLISP 

70 35 

Number of informal settlements upgraded to 
phase 3 of the upgrading of informal 
settlements programme 

3 0 

Percentage of infrastructure spent towards 
designated groups 

1. Women 40% 25% 
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Targets achieved: 33.3% 

Budget spent: 99,8% 

2. People with disabilities 5% 0% 

Report on compliance with legislation 

25. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I must audit and

report on compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial

management and other related matters. The accounting officer is responsible for the

department’s compliance with legislation.

26. I performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in

accordance with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa

(AGSA). This engagement is not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, I do not express an

assurance opinion or conclusion.

27. Through an established AGSA process, I selected requirements in key legislation for

compliance testing that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the

department, clear to allow consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently

detailed and readily available to report in an understandable manner. The selected legislative

requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

28. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per

compliance theme, are as follows:

Expenditure management 

29. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as disclosed in

note 31 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and

treasury regulation 9.1.1. Most of the irregular expenditure was caused by contracts awarded

without following competitive bidding processes. Irregular expenditure of R1 625 983 000 was

incurred on various housing projects due to the department not having an adequate sourcing

strategy in place.

30. Payments were not made within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as

required by section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 8.2.3.

Procurement and contract management 

31. Goods and services of a transaction value above R1 000 000 were procured without inviting

competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1, paragraph 3.3.1 of NTI 02 of

2021/22, paragraph 4.1 of NTI 03 of 2021/22 and TR 16A6.4. Similar non-compliance was also

reported in the prior year.
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Consequence management 

32. Disciplinary steps were not taken against the officials who had permitted irregular expenditure,

as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA.

Other information in the annual report 

33. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.

The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those

selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically

reported on in this auditor’s report.

34. My opinion on the financial statements and my reports on the audit of the annual performance

report and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included in the annual

report and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

35. My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented in

the annual performance report or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

36. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do

receive and read this information, and I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I

am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the

other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract

this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected,

this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies 

37. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual

performance report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not

to express any form of assurance on it.

38. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that

resulted in the material findings on the annual performance report and the material findings on

compliance with legislation included in this report.

 Leadership should exercise oversight responsibility regarding compliance and related

internal controls.

 Leadership should develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to address

internal control deficiencies.

 The accounting officer should review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.
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Material irregularities 

39. In accordance with the PAA and the Material Irregularity Regulations, I have a responsibility to

report on material irregularities identified during the audit and on the status of material

irregularities as previously reported in the auditor’s report.

Status of previously reported material irregularities 

Overpayment on project management services (project management unit) (MI 01 2020-21) 

40. The department entered into a contract with a supplier to provide project management unit

services in November 2016. The department did not implement appropriate internal control

measures for the payment of invoices relating to these services. This contravened treasury

regulation 8.1.1, which requires internal procedures and internal control measures to be put in

place for the approval and processing of payments. These controls should provide reasonable

assurance that all expenditure is necessary, is appropriate, is paid promptly and is adequately

recorded and reported on.

41. The non-compliance resulted in overpayments of R2 984 768 to the supplier as the same person

was paid for work done in two different roles for the months of October 2019, December 2019 to

March 2020, and July 2020 to December 2020. This is likely to result in a material financial loss

for the department if these overpayments are not recovered from the supplier. Further losses are

likely if controls related to the payment of these invoices are not implemented, including invoices

and claims already paid during the period that were not provided for audit purposes.

42. The accounting officer was notified of this material irregularity on 21 September 2021 and invited

to make a written submission on the actions that have been or will be taken to address the matter.

An external investigation into the material irregularity was initiated by the accounting officer and

completed on 7 July 2022. The accounting officer studied the result of the investigation to

determine who was responsible and planned to initiate disciplinary steps against the implicated

officials by 31 August 2022. The accounting officer also issued a letter of intention to recover the

overpaid amounts to the supplier on 11 July 2022.

43. I had referred the material irregularity to the Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation (DPCI)

on 5 February 2024 for investigation as provided for in section 5(1A) of the PAA. The DPCI

acknowledged the referred matter on the same date. Based on the latest report received from

DPCI on 06 March 2025 the investigation is still ongoing.

44. I further recommended that the accounting officer should take the following further actions to

address the material irregularity, which had to be implemented by 28 February 2024:

a) Appropriate action should be taken to investigate the non-compliance with treasury

regulation 8.1.1 to determine the circumstances that led to the non-compliance for the

purpose of taking appropriate corrective action.

b) The financial loss, as it relates to the overpayment, should be fully quantified.
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c) All persons including juristic persons liable for the financial loss should be identified and

appropriate action should commence to recover the financial loss suffered. The recovery

process should not be unduly delayed.

d) Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps should be initiated, without undue delay,

against any official that the investigation finds to be responsible, as required by

section 38(1)(h) of the PFMA.

e) Reasonable steps should be taken to implement internal controls to prevent

unsubstantiated payments to suppliers on professional services and construction

contracts. The controls should as a minimum include the following:

 Reviewing invoices by the housing programme unit to confirm that services were

rendered before approval of payment

 Reviewing invoices to detect items for which the department has been invoiced

already

 Referrals to the relevant public body for investigation purposes and recovery of the

full amount from the liable persons.

45. In considering the failure of the accounting officer to adequately implement, or make satisfactory

progress with the implementation of recommendations (a) and (b) in the audit report by the

stipulated date, I issued a directive to the accounting officer to determine the amount of the

financial loss and recover such loss, or make progress with the recovery of the loss, from the

responsible persons within four months from the date of the notification. In addition, I notified the

accounting officer of the following remedial actions to address the material irregularity, which had

to be implemented by 23 November 2024 with a progress report by 23 September 2024:

a) Appropriate action must be taken to investigate the non-compliance with Treasury

Regulation 8.1.1 in order to determine the circumstances that led to the non-compliance

to take appropriate corrective actions.

b) The financial loss must be reliably quantified.

c) All persons including juristic persons liable for the financial loss must be identified and

appropriate action must commence to recover the financial loss suffered. The recovery 

process must not be unduly delayed. 

d) Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps must be initiated, without undue delay

against any official that the investigation found to be responsible, as required by section 

38(1)(h) of the PFMA.  

46. On 23 August 2024, I notified the accounting officer and the executive authority (EA) of the

inclusion of the remedial action in the audit report. Subsequently, I engaged with them

regarding the expectations for the implementation of the remedial action by the stipulated date.

47. The progress report was submitted on 23 September 2024, however, the accounting officer did

not provide adequate substantiating documentation. I shared the outcome of the assessment of

progress report with the accounting officer on 28 October 2024 and noted the shortcomings

that had to be addressed with the final response due on 23 November 2024.
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48. I reminded the accounting officer of the final response for the implementation of the remedial

action. The first reminder notification was sent to the accounting officer on 29 October 2024,

and the second reminder was sent on 15 November 2024. The accounting officer's final

response to the implementation of the remedial action was submitted on 29 November 2024.

49. As some of the actions were still in progress, I followed-up in June 2025 on the progress with

the actions taken to implement the remedial action. The accounting officer provided an updated

response between 19 June 2025 and 10 July 2025, and an engagement was also held with the

accounting officer on 7 July 2025 to discuss the progress being made in implementing the

remedial action. I considered the representations made and the substantiating documents

provided, and I have concluded that appropriate actions are being taken to address the

material irregularity and to recover the financial loss. However, some of the actions committed

by the accounting officer to address the material irregularity are still in progress and not yet

completed.

50. I have decided to grant the accounting officer additional time up to 30 September 2025 to

complete the actions in progress to implement the remedial actions and execute the directive. I

notified the accounting officer of my decision on 21 July 2025. The accounting officer is

required to provide a progress report on the status of the actions being taken to implement the

remedial action and execute the directive on 1 September 2025.

Overpayment to supplier for services in Wolmaransstad extensions 17 and 18 (MI 02 2020-

21) 

51. The department entered into a contract with a supplier for the design and installation of internal

services for 3 422 sites in Wolmaransstad extensions 17 and 18 within the Maquassi Hills Local

Municipality on 8 October 2018 for an amount of R149 404 082. The department did not

implement appropriate internal control measures for the payment of invoices relating to this

service. This contravened treasury regulation 8.1.1, which requires internal procedures and

internal control measures to be put in place for the approval and processing of payments. These

controls should provide reasonable assurance that all expenditure is necessary, is appropriate,

is paid promptly and is adequately recorded and reported on.

52. The non-compliance resulted in a total overpayment of R6 764 797 to the supplier in excess of

the value of work certified at the date of the claims. This is likely to result in a material financial

loss for the department should these overpayments not be recovered from the supplier.

53. The accounting officer was notified of this material irregularity on 12 October 2021 and invited to

make a written submission on the actions that have been or will be taken to address the matter.

The accounting officer initiated an investigation to review all payments made to the supplier and

planned to involve the external investigations unit of the Office of the Premier during August 2022

to finalise the investigation and determine who might be liable for the material irregularity. The

accounting officer also issued a letter of intention to recover the overpaid amounts on 29 June

2022 to the supplier.

54. I had referred the material irregularity to a Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation (DPCI) on

5 February 2024 for investigation as provided for in section 5(1A) of the PAA. The DPCI

acknowledged the referred matter on the same date. Based on the latest report received from

DPCI on 06 March 2025 the investigation is still ongoing.
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55. I further recommended that the accounting officer take the following further actions to address

the material irregularity, which should be implemented by 28 February 2024:

a) Appropriate action should be taken to investigate the non-compliance with treasury

regulation 8.1.1 to determine the circumstances that led to the non-compliance for the

purpose of taking appropriate corrective action.

b) To finalise the quantification of the financial loss as it relates to the overpayment, the

quantification process should include investigating and retrieving the missing

documentation needed to complete the quantification of the loss, and outlining steps to

address the root cause of any documents still missing.

c) All persons including juristic persons liable for the financial loss should be identified and

appropriate action should commence to recover the financial loss suffered. The recovery

process should not be unduly delayed.

d) Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps should be initiated, without undue delay,

against any official that the investigation finds to be responsible, as required by section

38(1)(h) of the PFMA.

56. A progress report on the implementation of the recommendations was submitted with

substantiating documentation on the implementation of recommendations on 04 March 2024,

however on 26 April 2024, a request for additional information and/or documentation to complete

the assessment. A supplementary response was received on 18 May 2024. The following actions

were taken to implement the recommendations:

(a) An investigation was conducted into the non-compliance and although no officials were 

identified to be responsible, two (2) officials were verbally reprimanded for not exercising care 

and due diligence in performing their duties.  

(b) A detailed analysis of payments made to service provider from 2018-19 to 2023-24 financial 

years was conducted and the quantification of the financial loss was made through analysing 

the Basic Accounting System (BAS) report in which each payment made to service provider. 

Therefore, quantification of the full extent of the loss has been appropriately addressed and the 

overpayment of R2 790 961 and R6 764 797 was recovered on 11 August 2023 from service 

provider. 

(c) The accounting officer approved an addendum to the housing development project policy to 

standardise processes for claims, contract management, payments, and reconciliations. In 

addition, a payment checklist with three levels of review was developed for use by the finance 

department to strengthen invoice verification and improve project milestone monitoring. These 

actions demonstrate that the accounting officer implemented appropriate control measures to 

address weaknesses that had previously led to overpayments. 
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57. The actions taken by the accounting officer to implement the recommendation are deemed

appropriate and have addressed the recommendation. However, the matter is still under

investigation by the DPCI and I will continue to follow-up and report on the progress with this

investigation. I notified the accounting officer and the executive authority on 6 September 2024

of my determination on the implementation of the recommendations.

Rustenburg 

30 July 2025 

108



Annexure to the auditor’s report

The annexure includes the following: 

 The auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

 The selected legislative requirements for compliance testing

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 

Professional judgement and professional scepticism 

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures 

performed on reported performance information for selected programmes and on the department’s 

compliance with selected requirements in key legislation. 

Annual financial statements 

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s 

report, I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal control

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made

 conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the ability of the department to continue as a going concern. If I

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements.

My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department to cease operating

as a going concern

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Communication with those charged with governance 

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that I identify during my audit.  

I also provide the accounting officer with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, 

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.  
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Compliance with legislation – selected legislative requirements 

The selected legislative requirements are as follows:

Legislation Sections or regulations 

Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 
1999 (PFMA)  

Section 1 

Section 38(1)(a)(iv); 38(1)(b);38(1)(c);38(1)(c)(i); 38(1)(c)(ii); 
38(1)(d); 38(1)(h)(iii);  

Section 39(1)(a); 39(2)(a);  

Section 40(1)(a); 40(1)(b); 40(1)(c)(i)  

Section 43(4); 44; 44 (1) and (2) ; 45(b);  

Section  50(3); 50(3)(a) 

Treasury Regulations for departments, 
trading entities, constitutional institutions 
and public entities (TR) 

Treasury Regulation  4.1.1; 4.1.3 

Treasury Regulation 5.1.1; 5.2.1; 5.2.3(a); 5.2.3(d); 5.3.1  

Treasury Regulation   6.3.1(a); 6.3.1(b); 6.3.1(c'); 6.3.1(d); 
6.4.1(b) 

Treasury Regulation 7.2.1 

Treasury Regulation 8.1.1; 8.2.1; 8.2.2; 8.2.3; 8.4.1 

Treasury Regulation 9.1.1; 9.1.4 

Treasury Regulation 10.1.1(a); 10.1.2 

Treasury Regulation 11.4.1; 11.4.2; 11.5.1 

Treasury Regulation 12.5.1 

Treasury Regulation 15.10.1.2(c') 

Treasury Regulation 16A3.1 ; 16A 3.2; 16A 3.2(a); 16A 6.1; 
16A6.2(a) ,(b) & (e) ; 16A 6.3(a); 16A 6.3(a)(i);16A 6.3(b); 
16A 6.3(c);16A6.3(d) ; 16A 6.3(e); 16A 6.4; 16A 6.5; 16A 
6.6; 16A7.1; 16A.7.3; 16A.7.6; 16A.7.7; TR 16A8.2 (1) and 
(2); 16A 8.3 16A8.3 (d); 16A 8.4; 16A9; 16A9.1; 
16A9.1(b)(ii);16A9.1 (c); 16A 9.1(d); 16A 9.1(e); 116A9.2; 
16A9.2(a)(ii)  &(iii); 16A9.1(f). 

Treasury Regulation 17.1.1 

Treasury Regulation 18.2 

Treasury Regulation 19.8.4 

Division of Revenue Act No. 5 of 2023 
Dora 11(6)(a) 

Dora 12(5) 

Dora 16(1) 

Dora 16(3) 

Dora 16(3)(a)(i) 

Dora 16(3)(a)(ii)(bb) 

Public Service Regulations Public Service Regulation 13(c );18; 18 (1) and (2); 
25(1)(e)(i); 25(1)(e)(iii) 

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt 
Activities Act No.12 of 2004 (PRECCA) 

Section 29 
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Legislation Sections or regulations 

Section 34(1) 

Construction Industry Development Board 
Act No.38 of 2000 (CIDB) 

Section 18(1) 

Construction Industry Development Board 
Regulations 

CIDB Regulations 17; 25(1); 25 (5) & 25(7A) 

PPPFA Section 1(i); 2.1(a); 2.1(b); 2.1(f) 

PPR 2017 
Paragraph 4.1; 4.2 

Paragraph 5.1; 5.3; 5.6; 5.7 

Paragraph 6.1; 6.2; 6.3; 6.5; 6.6; 6.8 

Paragraph 7.1; 7.2; 7.3; 7.5; 7.6; 7.8 

Paragraph 8.2; 8.5 

Paragraph 9.1; 9.2 

Paragraph 10.1; 10.2 

Paragraph 11.1; 11.2 

Paragraph 12.1 and 12.2 

PPR 2022 
Paragraph  3.1 

Paragraph 4.1; 4.2; 4.3; 4.4 

Paragraph 5.1; 5.2; 5.3; 5.4 

SITA Act 
Section 7(3) 

Section 7(6)(b) 

Section 20(1)(a)(I) 

SITA Regulations 
Regulation 8.1.1 (b); 8.1.4; 8.1.7 

Regulation 9.6; 9.4 

Regulation 12.3 

Regulation 13.1 (a) 

Regulation 14.1; 14.2 

PFMA SCM Instruction No. 09 of 
2022/2023 

Paragraph 3.1; 3.3 (b); 3.3 (c ); 3.3 (e ); 3.6 

National Treasury Instruction No.1 of 
2015/16 

Paragraph 3.1; 4.1; 4.2 

NT SCM Instruction Note 03 2021/22 
Paragraph 4.1; 4.2 (b); 4.3; 4.4; 4.4 (a);4.4 (c) -(d); 4.6 

Paragraph 5.4 

Paragraph 7.2; 7.6 

NT SCM Instruction 4A of 2016/17 Paragraph 6 

NT SCM Instruction Note 03 2019/20 Paragraph 5.5.1(vi); 

Paragraph 5.5.1(x) 

NT SCM Instruction Note 11 2020/21 Paragraph 3.1; 3.4 (a) and (b); 3.9; 6.1;6.2;6.7 

NT SCM Instruction note 2 of 2021/22 Paragraph 3.2.1; 3.2.2; 3.2.4(a) and (b) ; 3.3.1; 3.2.2; 4.1 
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Legislation Sections or regulations 

PFMA SCM Instruction 04 of 2022/23 Paragraph 4(1); 4(2); 4(4) 

Practice Note 5 of 2009/10 Paragraph 3.3 

PFMA SCM instruction 08 of 2022/23 Paragraph 3.2 

Paragraph 4.3.2 and 4.3.3 

Competition Act Section 4(1)(b)(ii) 

NT instruction note 4 of 2015/16 Paragraph 3.4 

NT instruction 3 of 2019/20 - Annexure A Section 5.5.1 (iv) and (x) 

Second amendment of NTI 05 of 2020/21 Paragraph   4.8; 4.9 ; 5.1 ; 5.3 

Erratum NTI 5 of 2020/21 Paragraph  1 

Erratum NTI 5 of 2020/21 Paragraph  2 

Practice Note 7 of 2009/10 Paragraph 4.1.2 

Practice Note 11 of 2008/9 Paragraph  3.1 

Paragraph  3.1 (b) 

NT instruction note 1 of 2021/22 Paragraph  4.1 

Public Service Act Section 30 (1) 

Employment of Educators Act Section  33 (1) 
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